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September 29, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu,
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the N.H. Department of Energy (Energy) to enter into a Retroactive amendment to an existing
Contract Agreement {Contract # 1076440) with Southwestern Community Services, Inc., (VC #177511), Keene,
NH, by extending the completion date from September 30, 2021 to September 30, 2022 with no change in the

" price limitation of $4,439,841.00 for the Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), effective retroactively to October 1,

- 2021 upon approval of Governor and Executive Council. This contract was originally approved by Governor and
Executive Council on September 23, 2020 (Item #46) and amended on March 24, 2021 (Item #45). 100% Federal
Funds.

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive to allow the vendor additional time to expend the contract funds. US DHHS made
CARES Act funds available in FY21 which resulted in an increase in remaining funds for the annual fuel
assistance block grant funding. US DHHS allows the state and our sub-grantees two years to expend the funds.
By extending this contract, the Community Action Agency is able to continue their efforts to add more low-
income families to the approved clientele listing for assistance for the new heating season.

This Energy contract provides the Community Action Agency with program funds to support eligible New
Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled citizens who are in need of assistance to
help pay for heating costs this winter season.

The Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) is a federally funded statewide program that makes home energy more
affordable for income-qualified families, disabled and elderly residents of New Hampshire. Program funds are
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. Federal law establishes maximum income
guidelines. Energy subcontracts to the five CAAs who are responsible for providing FAP services at the local
level.

In the event Federal Funds are not available, General Funds will not be requesfed to support this program.

éspectﬁll bmitted,
. S

~—

Jared Chicoine
Director

IC/je!



" NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT
SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

AMENDMENT # 2

This Amendment dated September 24. 2021 is between the State of New Hampshire Department
of Energy. 21 South Fruit Street. Concord. Merrimack County. NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
“State™) and Southwestern Community Services. Inc.. 63 Community Way, P.O. Box 603. Keene,
Cheshire County, NH 03431 (hereinafter referred to as the “Contractor™).

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinatier referred to as the “Agreement”). Contract Number
1076440, as approved by Governor and Council on September 23, 2020 (Item #46). as amended on
March 24. 2021 (#45), the Contractor has agreed o provide certain Services, per the terms and
conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as
specified therein. ' '

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement. the Agreement may be
modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and only alier
approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council: and

WHEREAS. The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects; '

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in
the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

I. Ameéndment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows: ' :

A) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking the -
current completion date of September 30, 2021 and inserting in place thereof the
date of September 30. 2022. ’

B) Exhibit C — Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C. third paragraph by striking the
current contract dates of “October 1, 2020 through September 30. 2021° and
inserting in place thereof “October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2022~

C) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification® to “October 1. 2020 w0
September 30, 20227

D) Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates to “October 1, 2020 to September 30;
20227 ’ '

N

Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms
and Conditions of this Amendment. obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in full
force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as it

existed immediately prior to this Amendment.
CONTRACT AMENDMENT NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

SCS Amendment ) ‘ , Coniractor Initials: _B /
Girant: G-2101NHLIEA ' : pac: O RT]Y,
CFDA:93.568 . 7 Page 1 of2




IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first above
written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Dczdl’lanl u@:r&,v

arcd Chlcomc Interim Commissioner

Soulhweslem Community Services. Inc.

By: M@QAM)

(Beth Danitls. Chicl Executive Officer)

State of __ NH
County of Q,ht?'éh,\((’.

On this 871 day of _Sg piibe) .2021, before me, SOt h  Cimi-€a.4
the undersigned ofticer, personally appeared Beth Daniels who acknowledged himself/herself to be the

Chiel Executive Oflicer

of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., a corporation, and that-he/she
being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes contained therein

W,
IN WITNESS wnrrzros;f.?‘:&&u R,

f.‘" w"m;mons:%g
: EXPRES 3 otary Public/J
by 3 : i

E-
E-f-_ % 12024 EM Commission expires: - 3’ ’9’-{
A s
Approved as to form, ex8g R nce:
I"""mm"«ﬂ“ ,
OFFICE OF THEATTORNEY GENERAL

By:

Assistant Attorney General

Date: /a/!"/'Z'O'L]

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Councﬂ of the State of
New Hampshire at their meeting on

L2021,
OFFICE'OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE
By:
Title:
SCS Amendment Cunlr;lcmrlnil.i: 5 B
. Grant: G-2101NHLIEA Date: 0‘22&7’7737
CFIDA:93.568 !

Puge 2 ol 2



CERTIFICATE OF VOTES
(Corporate Authority)

1, _Kevin Watterson ' . Clerk/Secretary of _Southwestern Community Services inc.
‘ (Name) _ {Corporation name)
{Hereinafter the “Corporation™), a _New Hampshire corporation, hcneby certifv that: (1) | am the duly

(State)
elected and acting Clerk/Secretary of the Corporation; (2) [ maintain and have custody and am ‘familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) | am duly authorized to issue certificates with respect to the contents of such

books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on June 18, 2021 , such authority
(B

fo be in force and effect until September 30, 2022.
{Conltract termination date)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s} are authorized to execute and-deliver on behalf of the
Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Beth Daniels . | CEO .
{Name) (P_osilion)
{Name) (Position)

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with _ New Hampshire
({State of incorporation}

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been moditied, amended or rescinded
and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, [ have hereunto set my hand ﬁs the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation this

27 day of” September .2021 . : o ) .

} " Cler k/Scc:eta:y

STATE OF _nH
COUNTY OF _CheShoare

 Onthis &1 dayof _Sppiembers 203 . before me, ‘ |

- the undersigned Officer, personally appeared heun ua He vson who acknowledged her/himself

tobethe _ponrd  Cdxair of Snithuxsiern Ceonouniry rvices lne. , & corporation
and that she/he as such __ b rd  Clygac being authorized to do so, executed the forcgoing

instrument for the purposes therein contained.
IN WITNESS WHEREQF, | heréuntn set my hand and official seal.

T ok c

My '-..%i Notary Pubhc/Jtt'if'rct‘Df'ﬂTE‘PUHCL

.,
*s

g CoMm
§ 3 Bag’wo“': ] Commission Expiration Date:_1 4
g ¢ _“’“"3' 2024 | 3 -
z ; 3
o py o ol
o,y e &
%’H \A??

AMPS
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire. do herchy cerfify that SOUTHWESTERN
COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofiv Corporation registered to leansact business in New
ITampshire on May 19, 1965, T further certify that all fees and documents required by the Seeretary of State’s office hawve been

received and is in good standing as {ar as this oflice is concerned.

[3usiness 1D: 65514
Certilicate Number: 0005339790

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF,
I hereto set my hand and cause (o bé i:ﬂixcd
the Seal of the State of New l-lumpsl;irc.

this Sth dav of April AT, 2021,

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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ACORD

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MWDD/YYYY)
09/0772021

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER THIS -
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poficy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
It SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, cartain policies may require an endorsement. A statemant on
this cortificato does not confer rights to the cartificate holder in lleu of such .

endorsement(s).

LnIACT  Ana O'Donnell, CPIW., CIC

PROGUCER
Clark Monisnson Insurance | FHQNE "y, (603) 382:2121 [Targ, ng):  (803) 357-8491
PO Box 606 Eobnlss: @odonneli@ciark-montanson.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Keene NH 03431 INSURER A . Philadeiphia indemnity Insurance Co. 18058
INSURED msurer g . Maine Employers Mut Ins Co 11149
Southwestem Comm Senices inc WSURER C
PO Box 603 INSURER I ©
INSURER E :
Keene NH 03421 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  21/22 Master REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT 7O WHICH THIS
OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

T%-? TYPE OF INSURANCE NSO | VD POLICY NUMBER 4&%) |mnml LIMITS
S| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENGE s 1.000,000
3 = NTEC
| cLams-maoe occuR | PREMISES (Ea ocmercn | 8 100.000
| . N MED EXP [Any ona carson} H 5.000
A PHPK2201838 06/30/2021 | 08/30/2022 | ppasomalL B A0V INJURY s 1,000,000
GENLAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER, GENERAL AGGREGATE g 2.000.000
POLICY e Loc PRODUCTS - COMPICP AGG | 3 2,000,000
OTHER: - s )
TONMERED SINGLE LIATT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY {Ea sccidants s 1,000.000
| ANY AUTO BODILY ILJURY (Parosison) | §
| OWNED- SCHEDULED T
A | Auros onLy e PHPK2261841 06/30/2021 | 06/30/2022 | BODILY INJURY {Per accicent) | §
HIRED HON-OWNED T TAREGE s
|| AUTCS ONLY AUTOS OhLY {Per accident}
5
[ > umeaELLALAS | > occuR EATH OCCURRENCE s 2.000.000
A EXCESS UAB AN MADE PHUBT773840 0613012021 | 083072022 | poomgcate . 2.000,000
oeo | > rerermon s © - s
WORKERS COMPENSATION ] BT
AND EMPLOYERS' LABILITY vin X Shryre | ¢ ——
B | R e e UV A 3102800768 04/01/2021 | Ca/01/2022 | EL EACHACCIDENT s 0
{Mandaiory In NH) E1 DISEASE - EAEMPLOYVEE | s 509.000
H yas, describe unced
DESCRIFTION OF OPERATONS below E L DISEASE. POLICY Uit | s 500.000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 1017A I Ramarks Schedhila, may he attachad B mars apace i required)
3a State’ NH
All officers included for coverage
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION - *
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
State of NH, Department of Energy ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.,
241 5. Fruit 51. Sle 10
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Concond NH 03301 :

\f‘\/-td._‘f?

ACORD 25 (2016/03}

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPQRATION. All rights resorved.

The ACORD namo and logo aro reglstored marks of ACORD




\MARL1°21 ar111:05 RCUD { R
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE L{
OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
107 Pleasant Strect, Johnson Hall
.Concord, NH 03301-3834

- Telephone: (603) 271-2155 DIVISION OF PLANNING
CHRISTOPHER T. SUNUNU Fax: (603) 271-2615 DIvIStON OF ENERCY
GOVERNOR - www.nh.gov/osi

March §, 2021

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu, APPROVED BY GOVERNOR
& COUNCIL ON:  3/24/2021

he H | il
and the Honorable Counci AGENDA ITEM: #45

State House |
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 | PO#1 07644.0

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSI) to amend the SOLE SOURCE Contract Agreement
(Contract # 1076440) with Southwestern Community Services, Inc., (VC #177511), Keene, NH, by increasing
the contract amount by $1,218,800.00 from $3,221,041.00 to $4,439,841.00 for the Fuel Assistance Program
(FAP), effective upon approval of Governor and Executive Council, through September 30, 2021. This contract
was originally approved by Govemnor and Executive Council on September 23, 2020, Item #46. 100% Federal

Funds.

ffice of Strategic Initiative el Assistance EY 2021
01-02-02-024010-77050000
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief 1,218,800.00
EXPLANATION

This contract amendment is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAAs) with the New Hamipshire Fuel Assistance Program.

The additional amount requested in this contract amendment represents (the CAAs) share of Federal LIHEAP
funding expected for PY 2021. This OS] contract amendment will provide the Community Action Agency with
program funds to support eligible New Hampshire residents, especially the working poor, elderly and disabled
citizens who are in need of assistance to help pay for heating costs this winter season.

The Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) is a federally funded statewide program that makes home energy more
affordable for income-qualified families, disabled and clderly residents of New Hampshire. Program funds are
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. Federal law ¢stablishes maximum income
guidelines. OS| subcontracts to the five CAAs who are responsible for providing FAP services at the local level.
In the event Federal Funds are not available, General Funds will not be requested tc,; support this program. -

Respectfully submitted,

Jared Chicoine
Director
JCladc

G&C R4
TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964



/OFFICE-OF STRATEGIC INIFIATIVES

SUBJECT FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT
SOUTHWESTERN.COMMUNITY. SFRVICES,‘INC

AMENDMENT

Ttns Amcndmcnt ’datod E cbruary 12 2021 lS bcwvccn the Statc of Ncw?Hampghuc,"O&icc _of
Stratcglc lmtuatwes nlO'I Pleasant Street, 0ncord Mernmack Counry NH: 03: :(h'eremafte erred
o as, lhc‘“Qlaw‘) and Soulhwestcrn Commum&y Scnnccs lm. 63, Commumly Way, l_’(i) BOX\603

,,,,,

Keeéne, Chéghire: County, NH =034'H (h:rcmnﬂcr rcferred ta:0s" lhc “Commclor' )

Pusuantto an Agreeimichitithereinafier; veferred to-us;ithe “Agréenient™, ;Contract Number
1076440 as. approvcd iby: ‘Governor:and' Councﬂ on: Scptcmber 23.;2020- em #46 c.Conlrdr..tor hus:
a;,n:cd o prowde ccrta:n Servnccs. per: th\c terms; and condmons spemf' cd it the A recment: and in;

.....

consnd:rahon-’of‘paymcnt by thé State of ceftain:sims as: specnﬁcd thcrcm

A, ANYE B

WHEREAS; ﬁ’ieruant o tie provisionsiof. Section- 17 of. lhe’Agrtemcnl mc’Agrecmcnt may be/
modified:or amcndcdtonly by-a writteri: instrumeént: executed. by the: .pamcs thereto: andmnly.aﬂcr
approvaliof such; mudxﬁtanon ‘ordmendmentby? the’ ‘Gvernar and:Countili a,nd '

WHEREAS, Th'Stite!dnd the: Conictor have iyreed: qg-amignyhe ARTecTietitin Gemtain
rcspccts

NOW THERFFORF in;consideration:oThe’ ('orq,mng andi of the covcnants ‘Aridiconditions i
thc:Agreemenl-as; sct torth hmnn ‘the:pariics agreeto the Iollowmg

Ay Amcndmcnt and- Modnﬁcat:on of: Agreement The: Agrcemcnl m umcnde:d dnd; modificd as
follgws:

AYReige Lim ation:-Aménd Subpdragraph 1 Sof thc'Agrccmen( byrstriking the:
.cu.rrcul Sum,01:$3221,041.00ahd. mscmng in placcgthm:of (he totalksum-of
$4 439 841 00

B). ibit:C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhlbu C, ﬁm paragmph by smkmg the
cum:nl sum‘of $3:221,041.00 a5 'inséring in plau. lhcrwlutho 1otaksum.of
-$4; 439:841 00, .

aAmcnd L'xhlme sccond |mrayaph by stnlung thc :current-sum. of 5262 350:60

-Amcnd Exhjbn i, secand: pamgnaph by stnkmg thic; curréot’suny; of $2;784; 650.00.
‘and: mscrtmg 1$3:998.650:00-for- progidm- Costs.

2. Continuance'ofAgiécment. Excipt.as$pecifically aniended: and tnodificd: by-iic T'<rms
‘und Condluons of ihlb Amcndmcnt obhganons of thc parncs hercundcrvshall rcmam m full

G exjslcd lmmcdmtcly pnor 15 t}ns Amcndment

:GONTRACT AMENDMEN:OFEICE! ‘OF TR.ATBG]C INITYATIVES

SCS: Amcndmcnl < onu-mor lniuals
Graat G-ZIDINHVIRA bate! _ T l':".?.l .
CFDA:93.56% * B Puge:ar2




IN WITNESS? WlLLRLOI‘ Lhe :parties:have hereunto set thcir hands:us 0T ihe. day: and- ycar “firgi-above
wrlttcn

On-thi§ “g ‘day of QAL - 202. rbcfort:mc. NAaciiiret .
the undersigned oﬁiccr..pcrsonally appcarcd \’]nhn PLMFM{AJ( :. o
acknowlcdgcd Fimselherself io beithe . “(Z 5 ___of Solithwesiénm:
Scrvicés-Ine:; 4. corpomhon. and! thiat hc/shc bcmgmuthonud 501t0: do exécutedithe? forcg,oung
instrument for the purposes.contsined: thercin:

IN WEENESS, WHEREOF, Ihercuiité sct iy hand:and official séal. S 3

Approyvéd.as 1o form, ‘exetition, and substance: -

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

~“Assistant. Attorncy General

Daig: ?/ gZ 2o

I. hcrcby ccmiy thal t.hc‘lore;,omg conlract was i roved; by the: GOVcrnOr and Councnl of lhc Suu. of
New.Hampshire at-theirmeetinglor MAR 2 4 2021 L2021

5¢s Ammdmuu Conum.tor Inurl y
Gmm G-210INHL[EA . Da:c A H.-‘: ;
CEDASYI 368




State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 19, 1965. [ further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Staie’s office have been
. )

received and is in good standing as far as this officc is concerned.

Business [D: 65514
Centificate Number: 0005232985

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF,

} hereto sct my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2Ist day of January A.D. 2021.

William M. Gardner
Secretary of Stote




CERTIFICATEOFAUTHORYEY '—ﬁ]

I Kcvm‘“jaymon

o s e

(Mmt')
¢(Herginaferthe’ "(,nrporntmn") 2 N;w Hampshire Kgmithe. dulj
" (Sinse):
cléctéd:and’ nclmg Clcrleccrctary o_l‘ the. C Orponmon (2) l~mmmam and hnvctcusl y nnd am fnnﬁllar.a iriithe
mmutc‘book*z of the. (,orporatlo ; ')f . cspcct 19 thc canterits: S sucn

such .mlhom\

I?OORS (4) lhal d'lc Board ofDl "
(g bein: force and effect qm, Smm_l(l, 292]

{ Contran n:rmmumn daxc)

" =u)=ue),

(Nnmc) R ' - " Bosition). '
(Rame), ' — "".;‘Pa:'\'-ni;m)‘ T

vnh thc thc of Ncw‘Hmnpqmm. a]I such Iummuons nrc cxprc«ly qntcd hcrcm' '

[N-WITNESS WHEREOF; Thave hercuntu set: my: -hand. as the: CIcrUScsrcl.uy of the: corpomlmn 1his
16 -day- ol Fcbruarv_ o 202!

‘Clerk/Sctretary:



DATE (MWODIYYYY)

~" Ve
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 8/8/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AB A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. TH!S

CERTIFICATE DOES NROT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER,

IMPORTANT: H tho certificato holder Is en ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, coraln policles may requlre an endorsoment A stztemant on this certificate does not confor righta to the
. cadificato holder In tleu of such endorsemont(s). :

PRODUCER Hihaid
g%‘?‘a'o":%%’e"’m Insurance : PHONE o 603-352-2121 [ o 1y, 603-357-8491
Keane NH 03431 _ Bk 13. csr24admin@clark-monienson.com _
WSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE wa 8
i WAURER A ; Philadelphia Insurence Company o
g?tﬁhbwastam Community Servicas Inc SOUTHWESTERNCON| o nvg s . Malne Employer Mutua! Insurance Co.
PO Box 602 IMSURERC :
Keena NH 03431 INSURER D :
| NuRERE ; !
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1286620354 REVIS!ION NUMBER:
THIS 1S TO GERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER OOCUMENT WATH RESPECT TO YWHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIORS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REOUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADOUSUBR— EFF | POLIGY EX
',"_"-?‘3 TYPE OF IRSURANCE - | Wy . POLICY NUMBER ;;mm LIMITS
A 1 X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LABILITY PHPIZ14TBS - 83072020 82072021 | pacH OCCURRENCE § 1,000,000
—Joumswaoe [X] occun | PREMISES (Ew oocurence) | 4100000
- MED EXP [Any Oné parsan) $ 5,000
| PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | § 1,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: . GENERAL AGGREGATE § 2,000.000
POLICY D Je' '?f D LoC i PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGQ | § 2,000,000
OTHER: . :
COMNED SIRGLE LMY
A _::ouommm.m PHPK2147851 7 enon20 | enonoan | EREL S 7 %y coooo0
X ] Ay AUTO BOCKLY INJURY {Per parson) | §
[ 1 ALL OWNED SCHEDULED
| ATOS AJTOS BODILY INJURY {Per sccicent) | §
X NON-OWNED [PAOPERTY DAMAGE s
| * | MRCO AUTOS AUTOS : - | {Per socident
. : 3
A | X | UMDRELLA LIAD X | ecoun | eHuBTITT V2020 a0 | parcH OCCURRENCE §2,000,000
E£XCESY LIAD CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE § 2,000,000
o | X | rev 3
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION i 102800768 V2020 vz | X | B 1H-
AND EMPLOYERT LIADALITY YIN [Staume | (2%
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500,000
QFFICERMEMBER EXCLUOED? NIA
[Mandstony in NH) E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE § 500.000
| 79, SORCIiDS LNCH
SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POUCY LIMIT | § 500,000
DESCRIPNON OF OFERATIONS ! LOCATIONY / VEHICLES [ACORD 101, A Ramarks Bchedule, may be stached B more space b requined)

Workers Compenaation laws apply for the siate of: NH
All Otficers are included

J
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

. THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED N
State of New Hampshire ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
Offica of f'trftagic \nitiatives .
Johnson Hall
107 Pleasant Street AUTHORIZED REPRESENTA TIVE
Concord NH 03301-8501 . W
]

© 19882014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD.name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE. o 1_{ (.ﬂ s
OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATI 2'20 10:47 DAS
107 Pleasani Sirece, fohnson Hall .

Concord, NH 03301-3834 ' >
CHRISTOMER T. SUNUNU ~ Telephone: (603) 2712155 Dl;:\:féfgﬂogrl l:‘,:::(l""rc
oo Fox: (603} 271-2615 wwav.nh.gov/os
ber 9, 2020 APPROVED BY GOVERNOR
September & COUNCIL ON:  09/23/2020
AGENDA ITEM: #456
PO#1076440

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and ‘the Honorable Council

Siate House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

|) Authorize the Offiice of Strategic Initiatives (OS]} to enter into 8 SOLE SOURCE contract with Southwestern
Communily Services, Inc., (VC /117751 1), Keene, NH, in the amount of $3,221,041.00 for (he Fuel Assisiance
Program effective October |, 2020 through September 30, 2021, upon approval of Governor and Executive
Council. 100% Federal Funds. )

F-unds to support this request are anticipated 10 be available in the following account in FY 2021 upon
the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the fulure operaling budgel.

Qffice of Strategic Initiatives, Fue| Assistance : Fy 2021 .
01-02-02-024010-77050000 _
074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $3,221,041.00

2) Further request authorization to advance Southwestern Community Services, Inc. $311,259.00 from the
above-referenced contract amouni, : :

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Commnunity Action Agencies (CAA)
in (he New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, (he
syncrgies Lhat benefit the FAP s a resub of the five siatewide CAAS® implementation of several other federal
assistance programs, and the infrastruciure thal is already in place 10 deliver FAP services. OS| proposes (o
continue 10 subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level (or
more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the OS) FAP Administrator in the implementation of the

progrant.

FAP is n statcwide program, funded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assisiance Program {LIHEAP)
Block Gran(, and works 10 make home cnergy more affordable for income-qualified New Hampshire famities,
inclnding those who are ¢lderly or disabled. Program funds are targered to fow income houscholds with high
energy burdens. The current maximum income level is 60% of the State Median lncome {SMI), which is
369,686.00 for a family of four, The average FAP benefit during the last program year was $890.00.

The LIHEAP program operaies on nn Oclober 1, 2020 to Scpiember 30, 2021 program yeir, but s this time
Congress has not finalized appropriations for the Federal fiscal year 2021. Therelare, the contraet smouns for

TID Access: Relay NH 1-800-715.2964 GRC 092312020



Mis IZxecthency, Governor Chastapher ‘I Sunuau
and 1the Hnanmble Council

b +9, 2020

Papc 20f 2

cach of the Community Action Agencies is based upon OSI's best estimate of anticipated federal funding,
including carryover funds from the prior program year. No funds will be obligated under this contract unless
federal monics are available to be expended. The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAAs 10 operate the
program belween monthly reimbursements from the State. '

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested lo suppont
this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Q-

Jared Chicoine
Director

JC/EPS .

Enclosures

G&C 6051010



mRNi'.Nim:iER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

ﬂmg; “This agreement dnd all 6f its atuchmcnls shall become publuc upon subimission to Govcmor and
. Executive Conincil o7 spproval; Any infermanion thal is'privets, confidential or propncmry muit
be:cleaty identificd.1d the agency-and agreed 1o in wn;mg priorto:signing the contract:.

1. IDENTIFICATION,

AGREEME.NT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutuatly agree as ‘follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Stale Ageney: Name.
Oftice of Smu:glc.ln!ua.uv:s

12, State, Agency Address
107 Plcasam Street, . Johnson Hall
Concord, Ncwllnmpahxre 0330|

1.3 Cont_n.qo;, Nuns

Southwestern Communily Services, Inc..

1.4 Contractor Addresy ’
(3} Communuy Wny. PO Bo: 603, Kedic, NH 0343

175 Coniractor, Bhope. 1.6 Actoust NGmber- "1 1.7 Completion Date T 1.8, Price Limiwmtion.
_ Number | 01-02:02-024010-77050000. | September 30, 2021 $3,221.041:00
(603)352-7152 074-5005_37 0B211A ‘ |

)

1.9 ConmclmgOﬂ'mc: Tor Stale. Agcm:y
Eilcen Smiglowski; Ruel Assistance Program. Admhinistrator

1.10 Staic Agency Tglcphorle Numbcr
(603} 27 l-2l$5

'Cohti-ai:ior Si'gm’n:re

'Dm‘:"i‘/’?/b

~ ), 12 Na.memd Tiile of. Contractor. Slgnalory,
.John' Mmmng. CEO

Q.z/é Mm

Dite: c?/?/.?oio

T.14_Namé and Titls of Siate Agenicy SIgziony.
Tecred. Ckucomc O:ivectin

47 Approval by‘lhc N Il ‘Departmcnt of Admlmsuauon, Division, of Pusounel {if ap_pﬂcabic)

By,

Diregtor, On:

116 A_pp,r,owrby thc AlG

General (Form, Subsiance and Bxecu:icn) ( fap rc ; _Jc)

Page 1 of 4

Conuracioi Initials
Dat¢

%



4. SERVICES:TO RE PERFORMEDN. The Siate ol New
Hampshire, aciing throdgh Wie agency identificd in block i
("Sintc"j. chgages contrpcior identified in bleck 1.3
" (*Coniraétor™) to perfori, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or splc.of goods, 6 both, identificd and more pasticilerly
described: in, he priached EXHIBITD which 13 .incofpardied
hercin by reféfence (“Services”). )

3. BFFECTIVE PATE/COMPLETION O SERVICES.

3.1, Nowithétpnding py ‘pravision of tbis Agreement to the
contrary, and subje 10 the epproval of. the. Governor and,
Executive Cointil 6(the swcof New Hampshire, if applicable,
ihis Agfeemeng, and all abligations ofithe parties hercunder, hall
become sffegiive ‘g e PBote the. Govemor and ‘TCxéeiitive
Countil spprove’ this ._A‘gr'een‘:enif a5 indicated in bigek 117,
unless fio _s';.gi:b{n;iprd?nl is required, in'which casc' e A préciment
shafl beome effective onihe datc the Agreemeny is signéd by
(e Staié Agericy a3 shown inblock 113 ("Effective. Date™).

3.3 If the Gofiliactar” CoMMENCES, the Services prior (o the
Effective D, bl Sepvices.performed by the Contractdr preor &
e ‘Efféctive Dae ghall be performed. at.the sole fisk of the
ConyEctti; and in'the cvent (ol ihis Agreementdocs dot become
cffective, the Stale- shali :have no nability 10 the Costractor,
inglyding withddt limilation, any obligation (o pdy the
Coingnctdr for tany costs ‘incured oOf Services. performed.

-

specifiediin block 1.7.

4 CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT:
Notwithsiending: eny provision of .his Agrecment io the

without limitsiion, the: continiuaice of payrients hiercunder, ‘are
contingeni upon theiavailghilicy and béi\l_ihgcd"nppropdalion-,ol'-
funds ‘affecicd by any. sidie; of ‘fegcrel legistative. or exceufive’
action ihat: reilpoe's-" climifsics or otherwisc modifies ihe
‘appropristionor availability of furiding, for this Agreement-and
ihe Scape:foriSenices grovided if, EXHIBIT B, in-whole or in
part. .In no. everit. shill the See: b fisbie for any paymenis
tereunderin cxocss-ci[.iiu’:_li‘Svdjligbig'ngpmpria:ed-ﬁmds. In-thé
.evenilof, o.reduction Of teivipaLi of approprisied funds; the
Staie shelithave the Fight 1§ ald payment-until such. funds
Became:gvailalile; il Eved; and shalt ‘have the right 1o reduce of
termihate thg §ervices under (his Agrecment.immedisicly upod
giving (he:Congactor otice of such reduction of iérminatigh:

The-Stzre shall bt be.required o Lrans (e funds from dny gur

accounl bf owrce tg ihie Accounl 'identificd in Blogk. 1.6 th e
e%ﬁl*ﬁlﬁﬂi'ip'l'l'l_al Account are reduced or uaavailable.

5. -CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIM ITATION/
PAYMENT. -

5.1 THe Contrpetprice, method-of-payment, end terms of payment
¢ ig;‘_:'g;jﬁ'e;d. ond more paricularly described in EXHIBIT €
whichi is incorporated-herein by reférence.

5.2 Tiie payinent-by the Staie of the contract firice shall bg the
only ang. the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for oll
éxpenges, q’f whiztever nature ‘incurred by the Conractor in the
performance hercof, eod shall be the only ond the compléte

Page 2 of 4

-

Gigritiacigr must complete,all Sefvices by the Completion Date.

contrary; oll. obligations f thé State Hereunder, including,.

compensstion (g Lhe Contractor for the Services. The.Staté shall
have rié lability 10,/the Contractor: gther than-the conlract price.
5.3 The State reserves: the right io offses, fom any amounty
otheqwise payable to the Contrattdr uridef this Agrecment those
liquidated smounts required gr permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
tirough RSA 807« orany olher provision ol law.

5:4 Nonvithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
cotrary, and notwilhstanding unexpected cifcymstances, in no
event shali-the 1oiat oC all payments authorized, or ectoally made

hergunder;exceed the Price. Limitation set forth in'block 1.8

6. COMPLIANCE DY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND RECULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNLTY.

64 In connection ‘with the pérformefce of the Scrvices, the
Contracior gholi’ comply Rdith &ll, applicable siatutes, laws,
reguiations, and -orders of ‘fedeenl, state, county of municipa!
aythgnties which rmposé .any ebligation o duly upoa the
Contraclor; including, bul nay limited o, ‘eiyil rights' and cqual
employmeni-opporiunity taws. Ln additjon, if this Agrecment. is

funded in any-part by ingriies of the United.States, the Contractor
shall comply with:sll:federal executive orders,.ruks, regulaiions,
andstatules. and witi any.rplcs; regulations and puidélines as:ithe
Staic of the United States, 1ss0c 10 implement ihese regulations.
The Cantracior shail diso camply with all applicable inétiécuat
property laws.. ) .

:6:2 Duringhé torhaf Uxi_s'v.f\‘greem:ni,. the Contractor. shall hot
Biscrimsnate againi¢ eployees ‘of applicanis: for emgloyrent
because 0f idce, ;'.fqld;.:i;r.]_i'gibn-,,c:eed. pge; sex, handicep, $€xual
orentalion,,of natignal, ofigin arid will 1ake affirmative action.to
prevent, sych digcnsunation. )

Tcigr sgrecs lopermit the Stafé of Unitéd Sistes
accedsio py-ofit "Contracior’s books, recrds end accounts for
q-'p;qs,e'qrgs;gquqp?ng-com;slimc with altrules, regulafions
ardefs, ahd the covenants, .lerms and- conditiops ‘of this -

7. PERSONNEL.,

7.1 The:Cantrictor shall alits-own.expenseprovide all personne]
.ggqagg;y=go-pg;nfonn-'ihe Services. The Coatrctor wermants that
1] personngl engaged in-the Services shall be -qualified 10
peflofin the Services, and shall G propéry licensed -and
’o:t}'d:wiu:oi:thorizeﬂ'lo do:s underall applicable taws.

3 Unless:otherwise- iitliotized i writing. during-ihe term of:

itiis: Agreement, and{of-3; peeiod of six {6) months after, the:

Completion Daic:in blogk 11, the Contrector shall nothire, and’
shall. not- permit. niy siibeontractor o other .person,, firm of
‘corporstion with whom. it is tngaged in & combined effort io
performthe Services to Rire, sny-pecson who is a.State employec

.or official, who, s matcrially “involved in the procurement,

edminisiration or perforinance, of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive términation.of this Agrecment.

7 3 The Contfrcting Officér gccified. inblock 1.9, or his of het
successor, shalt bg the State’s represemarive. Indhie-cvent of any
dispute conceiig the interpreistion of this Agreenient; the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the Stale.

Contractor Initial
Qatec ¢
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Convattor; of subconuractors, ‘irighiging but ot limited to:the
ficgligence; reckless or intertiona) €onduét. The State shall-not
be lisble for any’costs incurred by thié Cartractor, arising. under

this paragraph 13. Notwithswindjiig e fgu:g.‘g_,pipg—,.nqiﬁ ing herein.
coniained shatibe dcemed (o, corstitute 8 walver ol the sovereign

jmmunity ofihe:State, which ifsaiudity is hereby resceved to.the

Stite, This covenant in fisragraph, 13 shall survive, the

tcrmination of his Agrecment,

14. INSURANCE. .

[4.1 The Contractdr $hdll: ‘st its sole expensc, obuiin and
continugusly maimain i (sice, gnd shall roquice eny
subcontractor. o7 assigfice to cbiain and maintain in [farce, the
following insurance: _ ..

14.1.1 ‘commercial genciel Tigbilivy insurance agginsy sl claiims
of -bodily ‘injury.. déedh .ﬁi-gr’dpﬁn,y'dnmag:,,’in,’an'idif_n'r.é of not

less than $1,000,000. per cotuivedce ind- $2,600,000 aggredaic:

of ckcess; and

14.1.2 specidl cause ol Igss coverage-form covering ! groperty
‘subject to subpboglaph 10:2.herein, in an.amounit not leSs than
§0M.of the:wholé reilaccment-value of the propery.

4.2 The poliéi'c's_ﬂc;sq;ilgu:‘iq';utgpaqgrapﬁ"ll.1;Hi:i'_ein shatl be
‘on policy-fGThyig t3:8pp

Tk 'dqmmcnn:approycﬂ;fdf use inthe Stare

£k - e L

! ° : ¢
of: Mew Hamipshife by the NH. Department &f Insyrance, and:

-is;ued.by-,tﬁiﬁi-g::s;!i;g;;ns_a:‘;i-in.&w-stafc.omawmb.jrﬁgshpp.

143 The Conlrector shal, fumish fo the Conagiing: Officer
identificd in. bk 1 ;8¢ hig or her successor, cénificase(s) of
inguronce for 3Y1 .instirdnce required under, ‘Whi§ Ageéent:
Conirsctor shallslso firfishito the Contracting Offiter identified
in block 1.9, pr his or hier.successor, certificaié(s) of insurance
'fbr-a'll'r't"hé'bi'ﬁ!('s');@[.'t_ﬁwﬂncc-mquired ,hﬁ'qi,'cj_"ﬂ'}is‘,fugtgqnl_eni no
lateF- thii tén (10) days ‘prior to the kXpirdtion; date of cach
insuteiice pdlicy: Thel centificate(s). Of ‘insurgnce and ony
rencwil s_:uhi-,;qo,r-sha'll.be:ait‘néﬁeﬁ-:iqd;gr_q;mﬁqgpgmcdlhmb\ by
réference. ' )

5. "'WQRKERS - EOMRENSATION.. .
15.1 By signing tus p_@_umcrii-..'lhe’-Céﬁtfgﬁor, agrees, cerifics

and uﬁfn‘pﬂlﬁgit_ﬁp-emhdo}:ik iin complidice wilh or exempt
frien, thic requiremenis:ofNH RSA-chapler 781-A {~Workers.
Gomigensaiion”). .

15,2 “To'the-exient the Coiitfaiciot isrsybjectito' the reguirements

of N.H. KSA. chapter 281-4, Cytrectar: hall -maintain, end

require any-subcontractdi- or. Rssignet 10 secure: and mainain,
payment of “Workers: ‘Gompierisatign o connection. with
sctivities whichithe Persad prdpases to underiake pursuasitio wiis
Agreement. The Contractonitiall fernish the Contraéting Officer
idgntified in'Block 1.9, 8t fis.or her successor, prodf of workers’
Compensation in. the: rannét-dgscribed. in N:H. RSA chnpier.

281-A .end any epplicable. reficwii(s) thercol, which shall bt

L sched and. we ieaparated herein by refercace: The Sate
shall not. be; responsible for payment of: any Warkers'
Compensstion prémigiss of Tor eny. othes «claim of bédefil, for
Contractor, or &Y s'&q_i:_aj\ﬁ:gpwr.dr- employet &€ Contivctor,
which. siighy ariye under applicatite Stale of ‘Nexw Hunpshiice
Workers® Compepsation laws: in conircetign with  the
pcr.foi-\'-nanr'._c:qf'mg'Servicc.s under this Agrecmeénit.
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16. NOTICE..Any nolice by's pirty heieio to the other party |

‘shall bie-decmed 10-have bieen dily q_elwcmd or givea ot thetific
of mailing by-certificd. mail, poitage prepaid, in o Uniled States,
Post Office ‘addressed. w0 'th pinies av {he. addresses gived in

biocks 112 and ) :4; hertif.

17.. AMENDMENT, THis Agreement may'be amendid, whivid
o discharged. only By an instrument in ‘wiiting signed by Uk
parties. heretd and only sfter spproval of giich aivendment,
waiver or discharge by the 'Governor.and: Exccutive Council-of
the Siate of New Hampshire:ynlessao such-agproval.is fequired
undes the circumstbnces pursuant io"Siate law, rule or poliey:

14, CHOICEOF LAW. AND FORUM. This Agréement shail,
be governed, interpréiéd _m:d,.construcd.rin,s'w"h:ﬂap,'c,c with- the
Jaws of the State of New- Hompshire, and is binding upoi and
inures toiie benefii of Ufe partics.and their respective succestons
and-assigns., The wording ued in.this Agreement is-thewarding
chosenby the padties (6 gxpress'their mutualintent, and Ao nile
of consiruciitn stislybe applied sgainst-or in.fivoe-olany party.
Any sctions grising-out of this Agreemenl sbal) pe:bioiight.and
maintsined ip New: Hamipshire Superior Court Which shall have
exclusive:;uﬁ;gi_clibq-pmof.' T ’

19. CONRLICTING TERMS. lii. e -ovent of & conflict.
betweth the.tefms.of this: P37 form {2s-modified: in-EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachimiénts and amendmeat theicof, the termis of the.
‘237 (e modifiéd ‘in EXHIBIT. &):shall contial.

20. THERD PARTIES. The paities hevetor do not intend 10
‘benéfiy, iy third. panties .and - iliis Agreciment;'shall notl be
iconstiicd to'confer any suchbereliL,

21, HEADINGS. The head ing§thrgughout the Agrecment are
for réferedce: purposes only, &g, te* Words 'contained ‘thertin
stiall in no; way be-held-t0 cxpifiin; modify, amplify or:aid'ifi the
'iﬁr.‘c‘r,ﬁrahtiarj,.mnswéﬁ_on or miganing of the provisions:of his,
AproEfent . '

22, SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Addivomal or medifyirg

,'i:_'rovis_ipns:s:_ut‘orih inthe;snachied EXHIBITA are incorpdrofed,
Tercin by reference.

43, SEVERABILITY. u!'qi.;_:cy,gnrmx.d’tﬂw.prmﬁ'sibq;;qr'-iﬁijs

Agrecmenizare, held By-é:eban &7 competent jurisdiétion to be

.conirary’lo ny. Stite-of federal law, the-remsining provisions of

inis Agreemient will femaif in° full force andeffeet.

24, ENTIRE.AGREEMEN T, This Agreement, which may be:
executed in w:nuhiticr of founterparts; cach 6f which shall b
deemed -ah ofigindl; constituies. the cntife egreement and
onderstanding bévweEn (he. parties, -and. Sujeriedes: all prior
agrecments and hndc‘(ugndin‘gywid\»r:speét',t)),'lﬁi:,s‘ubjw;'maiier-'

hereol.
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EXHIBIT A.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS
I. Subparagtaph.1.16.0f the. General- Provisions, shall notapply-1o this agréemed.

2. On.or biefore the date s_c't-.fddﬁ' in Biock. I.7 of the: Geeral Provisions, ti¢ Codiractor shall.
deliver to the-Stalc en iidependent-audit of the-Cantractor's entirc ageney: by a qualificd
‘independent auditor in good standing wilh the state afid federal government.

3. This auditshall -l:_»_c..cdljd’ué':‘t'cc'li\.ih'ap‘cp;dpnoc_'wigh the audit requirements of Office:of
‘Management and Buég__al;(_'dMB}, Circular2.CFR.200, Subgart F- Augdit Requirements.
“The Fuch Assistante Program shall be considesed 8 “isjot program” for purposes of this. audit.

4. Ths au&i't‘_re:p_dit'sh,;a,l'ljinql_u_dc a schedule.of reveriues and expenditures by-Cotitraét or grant
rtinter, ofall expenditutes during the Contractor’s fiscal ycar. TheCodtractor,shall ufilize e
competitive bidding;procEss to choose a qualified financial aiditor ot least every four years.

S. Theaudit report shall 'iﬁclijd'é-'é_.;jc'fhcﬂulc, of grior«yca:s‘.gpcsliﬁﬁéﬂ, Eoists along:with an.Agency
['q,s_;?qqs._c_"go the:currert Statis oi'the prior years' questionied costs. ,'Co_p,ijcs, of:2]LLOMB lettcrs
wriften as.a result oEaudits shall be forwarded 10 OSI1. The audit shall.be forwarded 15081,

within one fonith of, thié time of receipt by the Agency, sccompanied by an actionplan.for-¢ich
finding:of questioned cost. '

6. Deleté:the following from parageaph 10 of the Gengral Provisions: ™ THie forim, subject matter,
contént, and number: of¢ofiies ot:he Termination Repont shall betidéntital to those-of-any Final
Report described inExhibit A" ) . _

7. ‘The:costs charged \iﬁ@ijﬁr‘jt_]iis;;:g'rl[rqgl shall be determined as°alloivabilé under the cosf-principles
deiailed in-2.CER 200, Sibpart E— Gost Principles. -

‘8. Pm@m.&nﬂ'_ﬁnm;c,igl records-pertaining (0. this-coptract shall be retrined by the, Agency:for 3
(hsee) s from ihe:date of submisision 6f the final expeaditure.repor.pér 2 CFR.200.333~
Retention’Kequjrements for Recordsand until all gudit findings havé bekh tEsolved..

9. in accordance with Public'Law] 03-333, the “Departments:of Labor, Health and Hyman
Services;:and 'Ed(léntiéh'_,.a’iidf,ﬂ,_g’ljgl_ed_gﬂgcngics Appto_pﬁa'tiori's-Abt?of_i.??-ﬁ-’ ', the.following
--provisions aré applicable to:this:grant award:

8) Scction 507; “Purchase of American ~Made, Equipment and.Prodiicts -dtisithe  sense
of'the Congress:(hat, to {he-grealést extent practicable, all equipfiient and: products
piischased with funds made availsblé in this. Acl should be. Ariérican-made:”

by ‘Scction 508: " When issuifig:statcments, pre_ss-rclcascs,;récixlc;stsrfbhjpropqsals,'bid
solicitations and oth¢i dotuments describing project or-programs:fimded in whole;or in
part with féderal Mmoney;.all states recciving, féderal funds, including but-not limited 16
stiite:and |6tal governments and recipients, 6f federal research. gradts,.shai).clearly stale

SC$ UHEAPH ' Cxhibind, B&
CFDANS}.568. : Cootactortainiats J 1,
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(1).the percentage of gﬁt't,c‘:_lai costs of the program or project which will be financed
with federal money, (2) the dollar amount-of federal funds for thie projector program,
and (3) thé-peicentage and dollar:amount of-the total costs ot'_.fhcjgrp:jggi pt:gmgm;n,d\at

will be financed by non-governmental sources.”

10, CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests:shall be.

submined 1o the State within thiy (30)-days of the completjon date'(AgreementBiock1.7). .

1. M_)VANCES. Advarice funds must-be uscd solely for dppropriate Fuel Assistance Program.
expéiidituwes. Advance program funds ere to be used:only for Fue Assistance Program:vendor
payhicits. All Fuel Assistance Prograiri payriests, including Advance program payin€nts, thust

bé transferred from ihc'qummu;piy-Attibﬁlag'cncj‘s-g".cncrnl operating:account mto o spetific
Fuel, Assistance Program gcoount within 48 howrs aftet being reccived electronically féghy the
Suite. CAAS must:submit the bank-account sumber.of the designated bank-accouit. for the
advance funds to*OS] prior 16.tHe électariic subinission ofthe funds té.the CAA. Unspent,
Advanice program. flinds st remain‘in'the FAP dedicated account Arall inés gnd cannot be
rcomingled \yith.ahyx;b',uiér CAA funds, CAAsare-required to submit:a compleie eleclronic copy of

the FAP-dedicatéd bank-account:sigiementito OS] on a iiénthly basis.

SCh LIHEAPL . : Exhibis A B &

CFDAID].S64 ) : Contracion laltidli o 1.
, Dme_.
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EXHIBIT B
$COPEOF SERVICES

‘The Contractor ajgrées’o provide Fuel Assistance Program ;SErvices 1o gualifediow inconie
individuals, and. agres to ptrfonn al) ‘such services and otier workncccssary 1o operate the: Pfoghﬁ;ﬁ in
accordance. with the réquiterhents of: this-contract, the: principles and objectives set forth in tht Fuig) .
Assistdnce Program Procedures Manual, Lifdimation Mermoranda; and.other-guidance. as détermined
by OSL

Fuél. Assistance. Program §FAP)-scwfiE€$ wit) be:defined to-include the following categories:
1. Outreach, eligibility; cie:caﬁ'in-aﬁo-n and certification of FAP dpplicants.

2. PBayments directly t6 énergy” endors:
a. Reimbursement for goods and services delivered
b, Lines of credjic
¢ Budgel plan payments

3. Payfhénts directly to {andlords.vi& vouchess for renters:whe pay:théir ericegy: costs asiundefined
portion's of their rent.

4. Payments diretly to.clients:only when decmed apprdpnatc and becessary as dcfincd inthe.Fuél
Assistance-Procodires Mariual

5: ‘Emérgency Assistahce io'the form of réeinbursements for goods or,services deliveredin
accrddnce walh parsgmphs 3 and 4.abové..

SCS LIHEAPZ)
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EXHIBIT €
PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration.of the satisfactory performance: «of the services as delermined by the Stitc; the, Siatc;
.agrees-10 pay over to (ié-Cantractor the sum of $3,221 04| 100 (whiich hereinafier is: referréd 1o s the

"Grany"),

(Jpon the State’s recéipt of tie. 2021 Low Income Home Efiérgy AssistanceProgram grant from the US
Depaorunent-of” Hcalth and Human Services, the followmg ‘funds: will_be.authorized:

$262, 350:00 for.administration.COs(s, of-which $32,794. 00 will bé.issued as a cash-edvance;
$2 784 650.00 for prograim costs; of which $278,465.00. will be: issued ds.n cash advance;.
$174,041.00 fof Assurance 16,

Ttie daies: for this-contract.aic G¢t8ber L, 2020 through Septémiber 30, 202,

Approval: Ao obliggie (Exhibit I) the above- awardéd funds will be provided in wriliog by’ hie Office of
Strategic Initiatives to the Contraclor as the I"cdcral funds becomc availgble: .Drawdowns from:the

" balance.of funds will be made 1o.the Contractor: :only aftef’ Wmitten documentation.of cash. ncéd is
submitied.to thie &rare. Disburscment of the Grant shiil) bé'in decordance with procedures estsblished

by-the:State 85 détdiled in the Euel-Assistance. Brogram Procedures Manual.

CEDATile: Low [riébme‘ [-ltffn‘i'c:E'ncrggr 'As,s'_i;tgz_lpp Program
CFDA Na: 93.568
Award Ngme: Low Ticome Home'Energy Assistance Program

Fedéral Agency: Heallh & Hurah Sérvices,
Adimiistration for Children.and Famili¢s
. Office of- Gomsinity Scrvices

5CS'UHEAFH
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NEWHAMPSHIRE GFFICE OF STRATECIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT D

“The Contractor-identifiéd if Sectiad 1.3 of the General-Provisions dgrées.to comply-with:the provisions of
Soétions §151-51600f the Drug:-Free- Workplace Act 6f 1988 (Pub. L; 100:690, TiteV,.Sobntle! D;41 U.S:C.

j.‘o] ‘etseq.), and furthei-Agiees g’ h‘_ayc;‘_-mg‘(;:qntruclbn‘s:rqprucdt’ntivé,_ aé identified in Sections 1.1L.and 1.12 of
the-Gedcinl Provisions, executc the:following Certificatipn;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIKEMENTS
ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN.INDIVIDUALS:

USDEPARTMENT-OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES --CONTRACTORS
1S, DEFARTMENT OF EDUCATION ~CONTRACGTORS'
S DEFARTMENT OF AGRIGULTYRE ~ CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US'DEPARTMENT. OF ENERGY

This-ccitification is:rsquired by the regulations impleméntirig:Séctions 5151 -§160 of the:Dinug.Free: Workplaice
Aeyof 1988 (Pub. L. 100:690, Title:V, Subritic B; 41 U.SE, 701 et-seqy). “The Jariudty 31, 1989 regulations were
pmended and publisticd.sis Part [[:ofthe May.25, T990 Fedein Register (pages 7168 1:21691), and reqiiire
erifitation by graniees (and by.infer€itd sub-grantees and‘sub-contractors) prior 16 award that they will
-maintain B-dfug-free workplace, S ti’qn;}U 1:2.630(c) of the' rk:g’t_ih:'l'.ibji;Rn‘_g..v‘igcs"i‘f\al'n-.grnn_tec,.'(un_d by infetcrite:
sUb-grantces and:subscontractors).that 1§ & stgte may ¢lect to:make-one cenification 1o ihe; O¢parimentin-each
federal:fiscal-yearinieu of cerfificales forcach grant diing e, federd) fisca) year covered.by-tie:certification.
The dg’,l'.t_i'_ﬁg_,g_ie' sctout:below isa fdterial Fepresentation of fact-upon'which Felinticelis-placed when:the Agency
swasdi ticigrane False cértification or violation 8f Ui¢ cértificstion shall begroundsifor suspension of payiments,
fuspension.orteemination.df grants; Grigbvemment-widc suspension or.débarment. Contraciorsusing:this form
shotild $énd.it to: S

'I';Djr,'g_é,tor;,'N_é_w'Hb_rppshj_re'.'()'fﬁ_'c:c.pf:Stiitb"gig'j.Jn'ilj‘a_‘_ti'if_g:‘s,-
107 Pleasant Sireét, Johinsorn Hall, Congord; NH 03301

i 'Thcxg;amec.oéi’ﬁhc's that jewill orivill ‘_c'cjt_\iinur..'t'o'pro.v.id“'é’:'i'-ﬂmg-frcé workplace by:

(o) Publihing # §tatement notifyingiemployees:ihitithe uRlawfil menufecture, distribution,
"ispensing, possession of:or s€ of g conirolled-substance is;profiibited, ip. thé-grantee’s
warkplage and specifying the-actions.that Wil e taken dgsinst employees:for violation of such
proh witibii;

(b)  ‘Establishing-an ong'bi"rig-dfag"_-ﬁje_'g gwarcncss;program td.infGm cmployeesiabout

(1)  the dangens of driig:abise i thewworkplace::
{2) the grantee!'s policy.of miarntainiig 'g:_ﬂmg.-[re‘c workplace;
@)y dny available drug counseling, refiabilitdtion, #hd.cniployee assisiance:progriims; ind.

(4 ihe penaliics 'lhir-mq_rbézirrfpﬁsﬂ'ﬁp;Orl e,unp[oycgs_.fdr-drug,abuse violatighs Geeurting in
the .wf:‘rfcpla'cg:

(6  Making it o requirement thatcach employcé 1o, be grigaged in ‘ihe performance:of the grant be
Biven 8 copy of the siaement.requifed by paragraph (a);
(&) Ngtifying the employee inthe.statéiient tequired by:paragraph {a)that, asd condition of
employfieat-under the, grani; the employes will
(1) sbide by the terms.of thé stitefént; and
P37 'Exhibits D tuH
LIHEAP2
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'CERTJHCATION'RE‘CARD'I‘HC.DRUC-FREI-:_- WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE - PGR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, coot’d

USDEPARTMENT OF BEALTH AND.HUMAN.SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US:DERARTMENT. OF EDUCATLON - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS:
'US DEPARTMENT QF LABOR,
US.DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY'
(1) notify ke emgloyef in;writing of his-or her-conviction for & violation of-a criminal drug;
siatute occurringiin the workplace no later than five ¢alendai d_gys;_a'ﬁgr. such conviction.

(6.  Noufyiig the:agency in writing, within tencalendar days after.receiving ROtcE undek

" subparagraph (d)2) froin dd’emplayee-or othenwisc.feceiving aciual notice of such conviction:
Empldyers.of copvicted cmployees must provide notice, includifig, position title, (0 eviery grant
cfficer- swhose giantgetivity the conyicted qmpj@xcc‘.gag.g'\\i_ort'iu“g,- unles_s*th&fedcrai apency
has designated 8.central point for the feceipt of such notiecs. Notice sholf include ihe
ideatification:humber(s) of cachi-affected grant; :

) Takig onc.of the following #étions, within 3Q:calendar days of receiving notice-under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect o eny employee wha is.so convicted: :

(1)  -Taking appropriate personnel action.against Sach an.ciniplyee; ufi 10 and including’
‘Ermifigiion, consistent with;the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
-amended;-of- ' .

). Rc:‘;_v.fjﬁr_:g such employce to participate satisfectorily. in a.drug abuse assislance or
rehabilitation prog;:an'i approved (or such Purpdses by’s fedéral, $1ate, gr locat hedlth, law
eafortement, or other appropriatc agency.

® Makirig d g_aoa;r dith cffgit to coniipuc Lo maintain‘a drug-frec.-workplace-through impleméntation
of paragraphs (8),(6), (¢}, (4), 1), 8nd.(D.

(8).  The grantee may:insert:in the space; provided: below the s_',i.tg('_s) for. l.he{ﬁcffﬁm!ﬂDR’Qf:WWR?ﬂO"Q in
. condection’ with the-specific-grant. .

Pitce of Performiance (itfegt address, cily, couniy, state, 2ip code) (list each.focation)

Cheek  [).if therd dre workplaceson ‘file-thay are not identificd here.

Southwestern Communify Services, Inc. ‘Octsber, 1,2020io September 30,2021
Contractor-Namc " Period covered by this‘Cetifigation

.John A, Manning; Chief Executive Officer
Name and. Titlc of Authorizcd Contractor Representative

(), L A Mapwmay -9/9/2020-

Coniragfor Representative Signnturc Dato
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE:OF STRATEGIG INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contracigr:identified in‘Secfion 1.3 of the'General.Provisions agrees.to.comply-with.the provisions of
Section.319 of Public:Léw 101121, Governmért wide Guidance for New Hesteictivis on Lobbying:and 3|
U-$,C. 1952, and-forther agrees-to,have the-Contractor's representative, asidentified.in Sections I.14 and 112 of
ihé Giencrl Provisioiis, éxecute the following Cenification:

CERTIFICATION REGARNING LOBBYING

S DEPARTMENT OF HEALTE AND HUMAN SERVICES : CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT QF EDUCATION -CONTRACTORS
U$ DEPARTMENT . OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
'US:DEP-AB-T MENT-OF LABOR
/s DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Pnogp:ﬁs_gihai,ca:g:a‘p'pli';:;.a&le program ?:O\-'!e,r;cjd:):
" LIHEAP’ )

‘Contract Period: Ociober 1,.2020:t0°September 30,2021

Theiuridersigned certifies:1o the best:of his or her. knowledge:and belief that

(1) Nofedersl sppropriated:finds have-been paid or will be paid by oron behalfiof ihe:undersigned, 1o any:
persan forinfluencing or afteiripting toiinfliénct dn.officér or: Eimployes of ahy dgency, aimembiet of
Goigress, an‘officer.or emplayee of Congress, oran employes. of a:member of Congross-in connection
with thE:awiilitig:cFany fedesdl contratt; cortindétion, réneival; Emendgient; or nigdification of gny:
‘federalzcoptreci; grent, loan; or cooperative agreement (and by specific, mention s0bsgranteg or sib-
CORLFRELOR).. :

2)  |fany:funds:other than federal.appropriated fundshave been-paid.or- will b paid-to:ary pérsos for
iﬁﬁﬁ'éﬂb:i:ﬁ‘g:j(ﬁr.dt_tgj_i"p,ti'gi'g' td influericé an-officer or employee of gmt'.a,ggnqu,h-q‘-m_eni bcr ‘of . Congress, &n.
officeroremployee of Congress; or-dn employee of d mériber of- Cofigress:ii-connéction. s this
fed vyl cqritratt, grant, idan, or.cooperative:agreement (and by specific menfion sub:grantee or sub:
couitractor), fhe:undérsigned shill complete and ubinit Standard Forrfi G, “Disciosure Formi.to'Report.
L‘qb,byi_rrg‘f.v‘,-;ﬁn,u;c;_cq;qmr_,e,_.wi{p}‘ii; instiuctions; atteched and ideniified as Standard Exhibit EX. '

3) Fhe undérsigned:shall Feqiiire that the langusge of thisceriification be included in the:award document

' for-sabawards at:all 1iéFs (in€luding subeontracts, sub-grants, and cantracts urider grants, logns, and
cooperative igreementshang thatall subrecipients shall certify-and.disclose accordingly.

This. el EAN6n ig:g mgterial c‘e’iir_é_‘i_eﬁl_a‘_tiijh.‘qff fact upon whigh te)iaicewos-ploced vhen q.hjs.-;r'qnsaction was
made.or eritered intd, Subiissign of (hiE cerlification 158 prerequisite:foi making:grientering into this-transaction
iimposéd’by Section: 357, Title:1; U.§; Code. Any person who fails to'file the:required:cerificatiori shall be
stibjeci ) civil-penaliy of ot less than.$10,000 and.not more (18, $100,000 Féi esth such failiré: .

G b . Chitf-Exseiitive Officer. -

¥?

‘Lontracior/Representative Signature Coniractors:Represeritative, Title

lohn A= Manning’ ' 9/9/2020.
Contratif NamE: o Oate
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE-OF $TRATEGIC INITIATIVES

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractoridentified.in Section 1.3 of the Genersil.Provisions egrees to comply wittiithg provisions of
Exccutive Office of tie President, ExccutiverOrder 12549 and 45.CER Part 76 regarding Debarment; Suspension,
and-Other Responsibility Maitters,.and.fiirtheriagrees to have the Contractit’s representative; as identified in;
Sections 101 and 1.1 of the General Pravisions; execute the:following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Insteugtions for Gerlficotion
.~

(1) By signing and. submilting this-proposal.(contract), the-prospectivé primiry participafit’is providinig the
cénification. set out below: S - o '

(2) The inability of:e person 1o provide the cértification required below will:not necessarity result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant-shall sibmit:dn
explanation of why it cannot provide:tie cénification. Thie certification 6r explanation will be considered.in
canricetion with tlie NH Office 6F Strategit Injtiatives* determination whether 1o enter into this.transoction.
However, failure of the:prospective.primary participent to furriish a.certification or aiv explanation shall
digqualify such persin, frigm participation in this:iransaction.

{3) Thecertification m this.clause i o Materigl represetation of fact updn which'rélignce, was placed whea OS!1
deteiviined 10 ehiqrinto thistransaciion: Ifiitis lntcr determined that the prospective primdry pasticipant
knowingly féndcred.an EHOREOUS; CenifTEaLIoN, in sddition 1o oiher remedies ovailable {o the féderal
government, OS] may igrminaie Lhis; transaction for cause-or-default: '

{4) The ‘prospective;prifary-participdrit shigl! provide’ immediate wiiltennotice 16 the OS1 agency-to whom this'
propasal (contract) s submitied:if at any time the-prospective. primary participant leafiis thel its.certification
was erroneous when submiitted 6f his.bétoiie erfoii€diis by feason of thanged circumsances.

(5) ‘T 1ers “covercd transaction, " ‘debarred,” “suspended,™ “ineligible," “lower tier covered trinsaction,”
“participant,” “person,” " jfinidry cavered crarisactign,” “prncipal,” “proposal;”-and “volunterily cxcluded,”
03 used in fhis-clause; haveitlie meanings:set out in the Définitions. dhd Covéiuge sections of B rules:
implem'eminjg'skgm'ive'dqur.-:i.'zs_dﬁz 45:CFR Part 6. Seeithic attached definitions:

(%) m_o-p;ogpegtjirc;prfrqaty'paﬁic_i_pgnt agrccs_-by-su_bmitting_ 'th'is-prq@osal"(cbr‘iﬁ'ég:t)f.thg;__iﬁ'qd td the pzépps;é_
covered wransiction be Entered iritd, il shiall bt knowingly enler inig any lower-tier coveredransaction with
a person who'is debasred; suspendcd, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded: from paiticipation in,this
covered transaction, unless sthofized by-O8I. : :

(7) The prospeciive primary parficipant forther ngrees by submitting,this proposal that.it will incliide thé ¢laise’
titled “Cénificilion Regirding DEbarment, Suspension,, ineligibility and ¥oluntary. Exclusion : Lower Ticr
Covered Transactions;provided by,OSI, withoul:modification, in s 1owir it Goviered:trafisactions &nd.in
1l salicitanigtis Tor lower vier €overed tradsactions. , B

(8) A panticipanisin a-covered-transoction-mny rely upon a certification of & prosgective: parigipant ip o Jower Lier
tovéred tiansaction thal if.is not:debarred, suspended, in€ligible, or-iinvoluntarily excludéd from the coverdd

tronsaction, unless it kaoms that'the certification is‘crroneous. A ?__nr(ic‘i'p_an}.'mny decidethe meihod end
frequéncy by-wiich:it determiiies. the:eligibility of its principals. Eachpanticipant- may, but:is not requied
{o; check the Nan-procurement List (of excluded partics).

(9) Notﬁihg"cﬁ?i,tgiheﬂ_'in,ﬂ\‘ﬁ foregoing shall be'gonstzued-iorequire establishment of 8.system of'recordsiin order.
to.render in good fiithithe:certification required.by this clause. Theknowledgé and information of a
phitigipaiig isotrequircd 1o eicoed that avliich is normo!ly possessed by.a prudeni-person:in the ordinary
course.of business:dealings.

{10) Except for ranskctions-sutiorized under paragraph 6 of these instrucdons; if n-participant in a covered
transaction knowin'g'ly{entefs.irilo a.lower tier covered (ransaction with o persan +wio is suspended, dobarved,
ineligibI€; or volupturily exclided. from parric ipation.in this transaction, in eddition 1o bkt remedies
aveilable to the fedém), Bpigin'_fmnji_SI may termingte this trans3ciion for cause ordelpuli.

. P37 Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OFHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY. COVERED. TRANSACTIONS, cont!d

C e'r'ﬁj_?é&fio}i.ké‘gﬁr&ing Debariiént; Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Malters - Primary. Covered Transactions .

1) The:prospeclive primary participant certifies 16 tha bést of its k;i_owlcd'ge;n'd belief; that:it.and its
printipals: '

(=) aré nol pr'c.spﬁlly@ebq‘.rfqd,-,suslpgndod, propgsed for debarment,.declared.ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covéred transaciigns by any féderal depaniment oragency;

(b  have notwithin o three-year-petiod preceding this'proposat (contract) beeh corivicted of or had'a
civil judgmént, rendered u'g'a_itiS%"ilicn‘j for-commisston of fraud or for acrimingl.offense in -
conncclion with obisin i'ng;-.'nncn,\piins'to_obtnin,_ orperforming.o .;‘:Ub‘,liq:(.fféﬂéiﬂ,-éjmt‘é;or‘ local),
trahsaction of-a contracturider 8 public transaction; viglation of Federal:or State:antitrust statutes
or commission of-embezziement, thel, forgery, bribery; faléification.or, déstitction of fecords,
reking false Statcriients, ¢ reciving stolen property;. '

(c)  arknot préséorly indictod for-othenvist criffiinally orcivilly charged:by s governmentabentity
(fgdcril,.s'iafczo'r’local);wiﬂ'l commission- of any of the offenses;eniticritéd i paragraph.(1)(b) of
this centification; and

(d)  havelndtwithina thiret:yedr fieriod preceding this. a_p_'p:!jga_ti'pnlproposgl' hadigne or:more public
(Tederal, state-or local)-transactions ierminated for-cause or defaull,

(2)  Whee thic prospective primary pariicipant is unable to certify tonny of the statements in this
' certification, such-prospectivé pasticipant shall attach an éxplanation 18.(his proposal (contract).
/
Certification ‘Regarding, Debirtiierit, Suspénsion, Irieligibllity and
VolunthiyiExélusion r Lower Tier Cavered Transaciions.
. (To-Be:Supplied to'Lower Tier Participants)

‘By. signing and submitting this.lower tiér:pi6posd).(cBHtreer), the prospective IoWeritier participant; as definedin
-45 GFR Pait'76,.cedifics to'the best of i_gs,kngw[_eﬂ‘gc' and 'beliel that it and its principals: :

(a). are st resently débarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declased incligible;, or valuiitarily
excluded. from paticipation in this traniaction. by @ny fédersl. departrivent or. agenty.

®) whitie lﬁe'-.PfQSiic;d¥ig§:j6wp_f tier participont-is unableto certify to any-of the above; such’
prospeciive-participant shall attach an.explanation to.this proposal (coiitragt).

Thic.prospective Jower tier partioipant further agrees by submitting this prapo:al-(contrnci)‘:'iﬁal-_'il.wiII}ihctutfe' thiis
clause entitied “Gertification Reiardiiig Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion.: Lower
Tier Covered Transagtions;” without modification in-all-ower tici<covercd transactions andin;all solicitdtions fot

lowcqacovcmd transactioris.
— [/4 Mammn Chief Execitive Officer

,//conuucmf-:kgﬁfcse{umy'e;sqapsrafe Contractor's Representative, Title
John A. Manning . 9972020
Contractor Name Date

‘P37 Exhibits D tiri H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OTFFICE OF STRATECIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT G

‘CERTIFICATION.REGARDING THE
AMERICANS:WITH DISABHUITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contidctr identified in Secton }.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature.of-the Contractor's

representative as identified in-Scctions 1.1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, 10 exccute the followiny
cerification:

By signing gnd Sme'iﬂiﬂB'lﬁ.iS_pfrﬁstai {contract), the, Contracior agrees-to make ypasonablé:_éffoﬂ‘s"lo
comply with all applicable provisions.of the Afiericans with Disabilities Act of 1990..

ChiefExecutive Officer

hiative Sighaturo ‘ Conuractor’s .F{epresohtnriv_é”lﬁi'tib
John A, Marnining . 9192020
Contractor Name . Date
P37 Exhibits.D thrv H
LIHEAP2Y
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE: OR STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD'EXHIBITH

CERTIFICATION
PublicLaw 103227, PartC
ENYVIRONMENTAL TOBACGO SMOKE

h.accordince with Part C of Publi¢ Law 103-227, the “Pro-Children Act.of 1994", smoking may- aot be

permitied in any portion of any indoor facility osmiéd ‘Gr fegilurly used for the-pravision of health, day care,
“education, or library services io children under the age-of 18, if-the services ure fundéd by federal piogragis either
directly-or through $tate or local govetanieits: Fcderal programs include prants, cooperative agreemenis, loans
and loan guarantees, and contracts. The law:does:not:apply to children's services provided in pivaté.redidéhces,
fecilities funded sololy by:Medicare or Medicaid funds, édd poniods of facililics used for. inpatiens drug or

slcohol treatrhent

“The:aboye languege, must be'included.in uny subawards that contain provisions for.child re’$ Services-and that:pli
sub-grantees shall ce:ﬁfy-complihncé.&ééo'r'diﬁgiy,'Fn‘ilg‘.ift-,‘.tc‘)‘,.ébtﬁ‘_ply with the provisionsof this law-may resylt.in
‘the:imposition of a-civil monetary penaliy of upto $1,000 per day. ,

i Chicl Executive OfTicer
tntative Signature: Contisctar's Represeitative Title

‘Contradtor Rep

John A, Manning: . : 9912029
Contractor Name Daic

P37 Exhibits D thru H
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FA® Approval to Obilgite

STATE
First 77172019’ Wood and SEAS On

‘EXAMPLE ONLY E1bilbit |

APPROVAL TQ'OBLIGATE
FUEL.ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

ADMIN, FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE16 YOTAL .

LIMEAP2!
CEDA#D).568.

CONTRACTED BUDGET ~.536,22000 - - 5;646,370.00. 450260, . 35720000 6,545,37260 |
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PREVIOUSLYOBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0,00 0.00
ﬁms APPROVAL:TO.OBLIGATE: ~000, v, ..000 . . 000 . 0.00 . 1:165551:00. |
‘TOTAL AVAILABLE YO OBLIGATE 0.00 1,165,551.00 0.00 0.00 1/185.551.00
NOT. Aumomzeo TO QBLIGATE 538,220, oo 4;480,819.00 4,582,650 357,200.00 .5:380,821:60-
BMCA'
Firgl 74172019 ‘ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS. . ASSURANCES: TOTAL
QQNTRA‘C.TED',BUDQET o 'e5,663:00. L 10003:886:00: - 1;000.00 C :.-:59.960:00' T 4,170:208. 00-
EXPECTED BUDGET T - o . 0,00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 000 . 6.00 000 0.00
[THI5S APRROVAL'TO:0BLIGATE: 000 - 207,42.00- - ,0.00 0:00 207.142:00 )
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0:00 207.112.00 0.00 000 207,412.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OQBLIGATE £5.683.00 786.474.00. 1,000.00 69,950,00 963,087.00
SNHS ‘
Eirst Fhn0i8 , ) ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS  ASSURANCE.16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET - . ' ' - 163.J97.00. _ 1,796,162.00 . - 1:000.00. - :64;220.00 i1,967,149.00 - |
EXPECTED BUDGET . 000
BREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED, . 000 ‘0.00 0.00 0.00 .. 0:00
[TRiS APRROVAL.TO OBLIGATE: . 000 . ;. 354578:000 " "-0.00, "0.00 " 354,678:00.. -]
TOTAL.AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE' 000 "354.578.00 0.00 000 354,578.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 163,777.00 1,353,574.00 1,000.00 184,220.00 1,612,571.00
SCS: ) o .
Flfst TMR29 .~ ADMIN. . FAPROGRAM _ SFAS -ASSURANCE'18  TOTAL.
CONTRACTED, euDGET- 8363500 .~ 1879,501.00_ . ‘82500 - . ‘6496000 - -1,029,421:00:
EXPECTED BUOGET ] T ) B : T 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0:00 0:00. . 0.00 0:00 '0.00
(T_‘ms APRPROVALTO OBLIGATE 0.00 -, .. 181,504.00 1 - *0.00. .- -0:00 - 181,504.00"" |
‘TOTAC AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE’ 0.00 181,504.00° 0.00 0:00 18150400
uor AUTHORIZEDTO OBLIGATE' $3,835.00 §97.987.00. '825.00 64;960.00 84761260
CAPSC ) :
 Firsl T14/2019. ADMIN. FA PROGRAM. SEAS  ASSURANCE 18 JOTAL.
[CONTRACTED.BUDGET. , .- 6467600, ~2/573593:00, _ - 757.60: . 55110:00 ~ __ - .684,13€6:60. |
EXPECTEQ BUDGEY ‘ i " 000
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED, 0.00 *0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00. .
THIS APPROVAL TO:OBLIGATE; 000 11837300 000, -7 . ..0:00,  118;373.00. |
TOTALAVAILABLE.TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118:373.00
NOT.-AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE 54,676.00 455270.00 757 60 55711000 585,763.60
TCCA )
'iflrs:,rmzms "ADMIN. _ FA PROGRAM SEAS  .ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
ONTRACTED.BUDGET . . ' "  "180,269.00- ;- 1,4741538.00 .., 4.000.00 = ':82,850.00 .  1:695767.00.
EXPECTED BUDGET ' " 0.00
PREVIOUSLY.O OBLIGATED 6.0 - 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS;APPROVALTO'OBLIGATE ~ ' 000 - . 130398400 " - .0.00° 0:00 30395400, - |
TOTAL-AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE: .00 303,064.00, .00, 0.00 303.984.00
NOT.AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE. 140,269.00 1,167,554.00 1,000.00 £2,050.00 1,394,772000
P37 fectidhvr |
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NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES.
STANDARD EXHIBIT J.

GERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FENTRAL:FUNDING AGCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Fi.ln‘d'iﬁ'g: Accountebility gnd Tronsparency Act (FFATA) -requires prime avrirdeés of
‘individual federl grants equal io or greater-1han. $25,000 aid swardcd oo or aRer October |, 2010;:(0
tepigrt on.data related 19 exocylive compensaiion end associated first:ticr-sub-grarits.of $25,000 or imare.
[F thevinitidl award is below $25,000 but subjequént grant medifigations resultin e tolal award equal-to.or

qver'$23,000, the pward is subjectto the FFATA reporting requiremeiits-ds of. the date of the award,

Ariacididanec with 2 CFR Pan170 (Reporting Subaward une Excculive Camipensation Trfornigioir), the
‘New: Hampshire:Office of Strategie Initiatives must feport'the following information for any subaward of
contrcraward subjectto the FFATA reporting requifements:

1) Nanie of entity
2) Amouont.of:awaid
3) Fynding.agency '
4y NAICS code-for ¢onirects / CFDA:program numbcer for:gramts.
5) Program sourée \
6) Awardaitle descriptive of the'purpose. ofifie.funding uclich
7) Location of the entity .
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique:identifier of the entity (DUNS 4)
10) Tolal corhpenisation:and:names:of the top five executives if .
a:  More ihani8§0% of-ennual. gross reveiises are, frony the' Féderal governinerit and those:
fevenuéydde greater fhan $25M annuslly, and. o
b. -Compénisation informatién is gt alécady #vailable through:renortingto the SEC.

Prime grantrecipients must submit FFATA-tequircd-dela by'lli‘d,’cﬁr’lﬂ'dfme,_mqn;h‘pjus;m days in which
-the-award or awdrd sifiendmén} is made.

The Contractoridentificdiin Seclidn 1.3 of 1hé General E_rjo?i,s_igqs-g‘gr_qq_s;to-EompIy'wiLh the provisions.of
The Eederal"Fundi‘qgAécodnm!iiliiy-ih_d ‘Tl‘l,!nsp;‘ire_nq'x' Act; Public Law T109-282 and Public Law .110-
357, and'2 GFR.Part 120 (Répoifihg Subdwoid aiid Execwhie ‘Compensution- Information), and
furthiéragrees; 10 have’ the Contractor’s representaiive, -as; idéntified in Sections 111 ang 1.12 of ‘the
General Provisions, exccute thie following Certificatioit

Tie bcow named Contractor'agrees to provide.necded information e3 odtlinod abgviito tic New
Hampstire Office:of Strategic Initiatives and to comply wilh dll epplicable provisions of the Federnl
F ihgéjihllmwuﬁm'bility find Transpasency-Act.

(ConffactorRepréseatitivd Signstuire) (Authorized Gonractor Represenintive Name & Title),

Sauthwestern Community Sensices, lac. Q05020
(Gontractor Name) (Date)

Gontragioy Initials a“l
Date _ Q18 ]20

Page 1 of2 ~
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'NEW HAMPSHIRE OFFICE OF STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A
Asthe Contractor idemified.in Section |3 of thc Geneni Provisions, | certify that the: responses 1o the,
Below:listed-qudStions- ar tiue and nétiyrate.

I, The DUNS$ numbierfor your citityts: 081251381

2. In-your business:or organization’spreceding cofripleled fiscal year, did your business.cr ‘organization
receive {|):80 percentor more:of your'annual gross.revenue.in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants; $ub-grants, end/or coojiérative.agréements; opd (2)325,000,000 or more in danual gross revenues
from U.S. federal conltracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or.cooperalive agreements?

x. NO : YES

ifthe aiswer-to #2 abovetis NO, stop here:
‘I the anSwor fo 2 above is YES; pledsé:answer-the followidg:

3. Does tie.public have access-10 infarmation ebout'the cbrﬁpcnsali’b‘n of the Exetutives in your busincss:
of-organization thraugh periodic reports filed under section | 3’(9’)-_0_1- 15(d) of the Securiiies.Exchange Act
of-1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(5), 786(d)) 67 séction.6104 of i 6 lerminl Reverue:Code of 19867

) NO. _YES

"If the.answer-to #3.ubove is YES, stop here.

Ifthe-nnswer 10 #¥3.above isNO, please aoswerthefdllowing:

4, Thenariies and compensation of the.five mast highty.compensatedofficers in your business or

ey

Namer Amount! ____
Name: _ _ Amount:
Neme:, ___ -Amount:
Nime: : Amount:,

»

Name: ) Amount:

"Conuisciof |4i 'uEs il Z
Due g \3 Izg
Page26r2
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State of New Hampstiire
Depattment of State

P

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Sccretary of Stace of the-State of New Hempshirc, 8o hereby. cenify that SOUTHWESTERN'
COMMUNITY 'SERVICES; ING. is'a New Hampshire Nonprofit Comporation registered i trinsaet Bidiness it New'
Hampshire on May'l9; I965 t Aerthér certify, tidtall.fees ihd dommmrs roquired by the Secrediry’ of Sme H ofﬁcc have' hbm
reécivid 4 i3 in §ood tandingies flres (his office isiconcemed.

Business 10768514
Cenificiic Number: 0004894084

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

| héieic e fiy hand ind cause o b affeed
the Ses! of the:Sute of New Hampshire,
dhis 16th Uayrof- ABAT:A D 2020.

Witliam M. Gardner
Sccretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF v.g;m;é.

.(Co:pdhatc.Aulhorir_)f) '

i, _Keyin'Wanerson _; Chairperson.of _ Southwestern Community. Scrvjegs Ing;
(Name) (Gorporuiannaric)

(Hercinafter the “Corporation”), s _New Hampshire: corporation, héreby ceitify thiat::()) L emthe-duly

‘ (State) ' ’
elected and aciing Clerk/Secreiary/Officer of the Corporation;-(2) I-méiritain: ind have tustody and am. familiar
with Wve minute ook of the:Corporatian; (3).[:am duly authorized 1o issug cedificaies. with respect io the
contents of such.books;(4) ihal-ihe-Boord:of Riréciors of the Corpoiation have nithorized,.op' 3/182201 6, -suéh
authbeiry 1o be in force.and effectuniil Scptgmber 30, 2021 K (Date)

{CGontractiermination detc)

'Ihc;puson(sl)_hdtding}lh'c_ biélow Jisted _msiliqh{ﬂ;) afe authorized to cxecute and deliver on behalf of the
Corporsiion any ‘contracl or other. instrument for.the sale of peoducts ahd SEfvices: .
CEQ

John A: Maaning: -
“{Namc) (Vokition)

(Pasitlon)

(Namey
(5) The mefing; of thié Board of Dircetars was held.in accordance with _ New'Hampshiire
) ’ (Suate.of incorporetion)

law &hd, the by-1aws of:lc, C_oﬁpoi‘n_tj'qr);"aﬁ_d (6).s87d guthorization has not been modified, amended:or rescinded,
and continucs in:full force-and.cflect as of the isrc hiéreol.

‘IN WITNESS WH-ERLEOE,_.I‘I‘(N: héréinto set.fny hand as the Clerk/Secretary/Officer of the corparntion. this

2020 | S

1T GlerdBecreary/Officer

STATE.OF , New.Hampshire
‘COUNTY:OF _Cheshice

, before:me; argarcisFreeman:
whio acknowledged

‘On hig,8_ dayof ___Scpieniber -20_20
the: undersigned Officér; petsonally appeared _ Kévin Wulléison
‘herMimsolfto be.the: Bonrd Chuirpensun of _Souiwesem Coniimvinity-Se(vices Ine i 8 coiporitdn
iand thay she/he'as such _officer ' ‘ _being outhorized td do $6, ‘éxc,t_ﬁti;d'thé"fdﬁggdihg
‘instrument for thie purp_oscsihercih,conm ined. '

IN'WITNESS WHEREOF, | hereuntp-set rhy hangd aind official scal,

avttlngy
RS LA om
e 0. gl
.
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE pesnniYYYY)
mmo

3@@9—

THIS CER‘nFICATE 1S ISSUED As A MATTER OF.
CERTIAICATE DOES NOT:AFFIRMATIVELY :OR NEGATIVELY 'AMEND,
sELOW. THs CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES: NOT CONSTITUTE' A CONTRACT' BETWEEN THE LSBUINGINSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE.OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIRCATE KOLDER

.lNFORMATlON ONLY.AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CER'ﬂF’ICAi"E HOLDER 'I"HIS
EXTEND OR ALTER. THE:COVERAGE AFFORDED  8Y THE POLICIES

“IMPORTANT: If tUho cortificatn holder ks sn ADOITIONAL INSURED, the. pt;licﬂln) must'be endorsed. I! BUBROGATION IS WANEO uwbcl to,
the'tarimig ang condiions.of the pallcy; cartalh polcles: may- roquire an-endoniemenL . A:statamani-on.this clnmuu does not confer. ngm to the-
Mﬂuh holde7 n lieu . lu:h rmdoumm{q.

PRODUCER
E'g"‘mm'm" ) i 603-382:21 2% | o e 603:257-8491
Kéene NH 03431 . cammmgummmmm
. L pucy

waynEn A ; Philadeiphis insurance Company

| wunga 9 ; Maine Empioyer Mutudl insursnce Co,
Soullvwosiem Community Sevices e i pwn: i Maine Empacys: e =
PO | prgukgR C;
Kasine NH 03431y | miingm o5

S PAEAN;

fgynen b

CERTIFICATE MAY' BE 1SSUED ‘OR MA)
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. .LMITS SHOWN MAY

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1286820304,

THS1S TO CERTIFY YHAT THE POUICIES OF
INDICATED: "NOTWATHSTANDING ANY RECWT

NSV

RANCE USTED BELOW NAVE BEEM ISSUED YO THE INSURED NAMED:ABCVE, FOR. THE .POLICY PERICD
REMENT. TERM"OR 'CONDIMION OF ANY' CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT-WITHRESPECT 10 WHICH THIS
Y- PERTADI, “THE INSURANCE. A.E{aaoen BY THE. POUKCIES OESCRIBED NEREW IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TEAMS,
VE BEEN REQUCED. BY PAID,CLAIMS.

T eeorimiin o ST TR 1 SP R
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To the Board of Direclors of ’ : CERTIFERD PURLIC MUOUNTANTS
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.. - - WIASERORW « RGATY CONTRY
Keene, New Hampshire mwgi‘ ;.}ti;\.‘i;,qun

INDEPENDENT. AUDITORS' REPORY.

Reportion:ihs. EinanciaiStatements;

We have sudifed the accompanying consolidaled financial statemenis of Southwestern
Communily Services, Inc. (@ New Hampshire nonprofit corporalion) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated slatements of financial position as of May 31, 2019 and 2018,
and the related consolidated statemants of cash flows, functional expenses, and notes (o the
consolidated financial stalements for the years then ended, and the related consclidated
statemant of activities for the year ended May 31, 2019.

‘Managemant Is rasponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consollgated
financial stalemenls in accordance with accounling principles generally accepled in the United
States of America; Inis Includes the design, implementation, and mainienance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and falr presentation of consolidaled financial statemants
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ernor. :

Additors Resaansibiligy: . -
Our responsibilily is Lo express an opinion on these consalldated financial statements based
on our audils. We conducted our audis in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted In the United States of America and the slandards applicable o financial audits
conlained in Govermment Audifing Slandards, issued by the Complrollér General of the Uniled
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits 1o obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the oconsolidatad financlal statemenls are free from maleral
misslatement.

An audil involves performing procedures to obtaln audit evidence about the amounis and
disclosures in the consolldated financlal statemants. The procedures selecled depend on the
auditors' judgmenl, including: the. assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated fnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers Internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
prasentation of the consolidated financlal stalements In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the  circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinton. An sudit
also includes evaluating the approprialeness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of signlficant accounting eslimates made by management, as well as
evalualing the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe (hal the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.”
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To the Board of Oireclors of CHETUTEN 1AL ACXOUNTASTS
WUISEBDRIY « NORTU NN

Southwestern Community Services, hic., ¢ IOMIR »+ CORCOKD
N R UL
Keene, New Hampshire . STRATHAM

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report-on:the. Financlat Statemenis
We have audiled the accompanying consolidaled financial slatements of Southwestern *.

Communlly Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofil "corporation) and related companies,

which comprise tha consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2019 and 2018,

and the related consolidated statements of cash flows, funcilonal expenses, and notes to lhe’
consolidated financial stalements for the years (hen ended, and the related consolidated
statemeni of actlvities.ror the year ended May 31, 2019.

Maonegement's Responslblmyfor the Fifjanclol Statements,
Managemenl is responsible for the preparation angd fair presentation of these consolidated

financlal statements in accordance with accounting principles generally sccepled in the United
States of America; this Includes the design, implementation, and malntenance of intema)
control relevant to the preparation and falr presentation of consolidated nnancla1 statemenis
(thet ere free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

Auditers’ Résponsibll
Our rasponsgibilily is to express an op[mon on these consolldated financlal stalements based

on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with audiling standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the_ standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Audiling Standards, issued by the Comptrollér General of the United
Slates. Those standands require that we plan and perform the sudits to obtaln reasonable
assurance abou! whelher the consolidated flnancial stalemenls are free from. material

musstatement

An audit involves performing procadures to obiain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial stalements. The procedures selecled depend on the
auditors' Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of malenal misstatement of the
consolidated financial statemenls, whether due lo fraud or eror. In making thosa risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preéparation and fair
presentation-of lhe consolidated financial statersnts In order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
affectiveness of the entily's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinlon. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriatengss of accounling policies used and the
reasonableness of signlficant accounting eslimates made by managemeni, as well as
evalualing the overali presenlahon of the consolidated financia! statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we-have oblauned is sufficient and appropriate to prowde 8
basis lor our audit opinion.



Oplrlon

‘In_ our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referrad to above present falry, (n all
material respects, the financial position of Southwestern Community Services, inc. and related
companies as of May 31, 2019 -and 2018, and the changes in thelr net assets and thelr cash
fiows for the years then ended in accordance wilh accounting principies gensrally accepted In

the Unltad States of America.

Report on Sumibsrized Coritparativé:information, . .

We have previously audlted Southwestern Communily Services, Inc. and related companles’
2018 financlal slatements, and we expressed an unmodified sudit opinion an those audiled
financlal statements in our regort dated Septernber 17, 2018. In our oplinion, the summarized
comparative Information presented herain ss of and for the year ended May 31, 2018, Is
consistent, In all material respects, with the audited financlal slatements from which it has been

derived. ] -
Other.{nformation )

Our audlt was conducted for the purpose of forming .an opinion on the consolidated financial

statements as a whole. The accompanying schedules of expenditures ot federal awards, as

requlred by Title 2 U.S. Code 'of Federel Ragulations (CFR) Part 200, Unlform Adminlstrative

Requirements, Cost Princlplas, and Audit Raquirements for Federal Awards, and the

Schedules of Funclionsl Revenues and Expenses, are presented for purposes of additional

andlysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financlal slatements. Such information

s the respons!blity of managsment and was dertvad from and relates directly to the underlying

accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financlel statements. The

informalon has been subjected to the augiing procedures applied In the audt of the
consolidated financial statements and cenain additiona! procedures, including comparing and

reconclling such Information directly to the underying accounting and other records uséd to
prépare tha consolidated financlal’ stelements or to the consolidated financlal statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
acceptad In the Uniled States of America. in our oplnlon, the information Is falrly statad, In all
material réspects, in relation to the consolidated (inanclal stalements as 8 whole.

Other-feparting Required by Government-Auditing Stendards

In accordance with Govermment Auditing Standards, we heve also Issued our report dated
November 5, 2019, on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s Intemal
control over financlal reporting and on our tests of s compliance with certaln provislons of
Jaws, régulations, contracts, and grant agrgements and othar matters. The purpose of that
report Is to describe the scopa ‘of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and
compltance and ths results of. that testing, and not to provide an oplnlon on Intemal control
over financlal reporiing or on compllance. That report Is an [ntegral part of an audit pardormed
In eccordance with Government Audiling Stenderds in considering Southwestemn Community
Services, Inc.'s intamal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Leo, 11 Bl Kb

V/Wfﬂ}d(ﬂ (2s50iciAim

November 5, 2018
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire



CONSOUIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash aquivalonts
Accounis recaivable .
Prepoid oxpanses |
Netas roceiveble
Interesl roceivebis

Total curmord ascols

PROPERTY
Land end bulidings
Vehiclas ond equdpment
Fumiture and fbduras
Total property

Loas eccumutaied depracistion
Property, not

OTHER ASSETS
Investimant b related partles
Ouo rom rololed pertioy
Coh esorow end reserve funds
Securlty daposiis
Othar ossats

Totnl other sssols

'Toml assots

CURRENT LIABIUTIES
«  Accounts payable
Accruod oxpansos
Aocrusd peyroll end payroll toxas
Othor current llabiites -
Refundeble sdvances
{ntotest payebls
Curront portion of long term dabt

Total cument llsp!lma_s

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term debt, lass cwrent portion shown obove

Totol fiablities
NET ASSETS
Wilhout donor restricions
With donor restriclions
Totel nat pasels

Tota! Babililos and not assels

See Notos to Consolldated Financla! Statormants

3

k1]

$ 802,187
- 4,245,820
51,722
112,000
NP1 14

cckuddL2B2 -

10,188,791

554,676 .

10,084,058

2018

$ 1,088,805
1,050,022
3501¢
112,000

. 45,547

14,438,178
549,305

15,027,100

198,728 38,708
50,102 168,523

849,334 517,853

- 62,008 © 51,008
1,170,544 847,482

g 16GIIBET  § A333200)
$ 291613  § 124,085
119,620 © 208,170
233,900 250,692
138.740 115,573
180,004 To193,03

49.547 .

. 227221 - .. 218,438
1,341,835 1,120,807

. 9085445 021083
10,428,689 5,400,880
4,922,670 ATAT 422

. 182918 344,691
5,105 587 — :_!,932.113

§ 35533687  F 13332093



REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Govemmen! conlrects
Progrem senvice itol
Rental Icome
Deviiloper {60 Income
Sugpon
Sponsarship
Intarest incoms
Forgiveness of dabl
Miscekaneous

. In-kind coalfoutions

Tolal reveruas and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM
REGTRICTIONS

Tolal ravenues, other suppont, and

- ne! aa0ts rolasead from restrictions

EXPENSES

Progrem asrvicas
Home onaey prograny
Educatian end marfion
Homelizss programs
Housing sarvicas
Economic develgpment services
Other program

Towl program gonvicos

Bupportng sctivities
Manegament and gencrs!

Total oxpansos

CHANGES IN NET ASGETS BEFORE
' LOSSH ON BALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON BALE OF PROPERTY

GAIN [LOSE) ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTHNERSHIPS:

CHANGE N NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR,

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED PARTNERBHIP

NEYT ASSETS, END OF YEAR

DATED BTATEMENT OF AGTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 34, 2019
RYEAR.S MARIZCD.COMPARA

2018

Wtu!ou! D9nof Vt"llh Don.or 049
Ry o,
$ 10872702 § e $ 10672702 §.11.085.003
2,485,405 -:- 2,485,403 1,888,128
£95,360 - 205,380 201642
- . - 50,000
326,558 125,833 432,291 508,229
70.693 e 70,803 105,288
7.153 - 7,45 8.050
388,640 - 383,849 78,071
120,697 120,607 100,772
241499 243490 101,852
15,300,138 126833 15434060 14,736.992
87608 81608y -
‘ ;.”': ---,','-.-\._2 Pre -.-rr- _‘ . . ; :- \
5,238,483 v 623,48 4847201
2,850,830 2,839,530 2,630,162
1.004.872 1,094,872 2.172,348
2,319,065 - 2.319.865 2048214
721,370 1, 121,370 720,119
... 604088 . . 894088 945,391
13,629,408 13,820,406 12.271,485
1,080 405 . 1880408 1,749:700
15,.?09,8“‘. ) ".'-" -15.709;312‘ 15,021,143
(313.008) 38,228 (274.843) {264,113)
(6.481) {6.421) (4,583)
18118 18,118 _{188)
(301.433) 38225 {263,208) (288,044)
3,787.422 144,891 3032113 3307.172
...1,435,882 Lo L A4demm7 223,285
§. 4922071 $.. 182016 $ 5105587 -§ IGITMY:

Soe Notos to Consolldaiad Flnancial Stataments

4

- .



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FORTHE YEARS ENDED MAY 31,'201D AND 2418

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change (n e cxacts
Adusimants to roconollo changes In not esests Lo
nol cosh from opereiing eciMiias:
Daprociation and omoritzation
Loss on sale of propesty
{Gein) loss on Investment in tmilod pennerships
Forpivoness of debl
(Increase) decreess In a3t
Accoun!s roceivebio
Prepaid axpensas
Interes! rocetvitio
Owsg from roletod parties
Socurlty depoita
Increeso (decrazso) In labilVes:
Accourtts peynblo
ALLruod axpenses .
Accrued payroll end payroll taxes
Othor current Eabilittes
Refundable oiivances
Intorest payeble

NET GASH (USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Incrosse) docrease by escrow lunds
Procedds from glg of propedy
Purchaus of propesty.
NET GASH PROVIDED BY {USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceods from kag tom debt
. Repmyment of long tarm dobt -

NET CASK USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH TRANSFERRED FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIP -

CASH AND CASH EQUIYALENTE, END OF YEAR

1

So¢ Notes to Consolidated Financlal Stetements

o

2019 2018
$ (203208) § (280.044)
580,115 487520
0,401 4,503
(18,118) 168
{180.849) {78.011) .
{165.004) 265,199
5609 {3,439)
-1 {A.480)
44,240 88,149
5,151 (2.623)
145,620 {63,220)
(100.005) (38,883)
{10.7%2) 0.857
3187 {13,125)
{12.037) (¢4,414)
.. AD6AT -
[162,672) 288,626
(33.568) 6,840
215,000 e
{19717y .. {14291y
BRI YRS {138.645)
40,048 70,143
_{160029) . _ .{112612)
| __{a9.esy (38,485).
{230.918) 115,212
1,086,605 047,176
26230 24,508
$_. 882,187 % 1088605
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

EOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2019 ANDL2014

BUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cnh pekd during tho yoar for inloras!

SUFPIEMENTkL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Tronster of ba3cts trom newly consoddated LP:
Prapaid axponses .
Lend and bultdings
Fumituro ond fxtures
Cash esbrow and rosorve funda
Securty deposhs

Tons! trunsfer of assets from newly consofidated LP
Tronstor of Rabitikes from nowly conscbdatad LP;
Accounts payabls
Accrued dxponsesy
Due to rolated poartas
Long term dett
Tolsl transfer of llabMiod from newly consotidated LP
Tolal prneny’ caphal from newly consolidstod LP
Parlnors' caplial proviously recardod ag Investmaent In relaled paries

Tota! transfer of pannors’ capltal (rom nowly congalidated LP

Soo Noles to Consolidotod Finoncle! Statomants

a8 2018
3203408, § . 142407
$  (R212) $  (12.328)

(2.873,335) (894,504}

{188,237) (88,338}

(207,913) {184,110,

(18,151) _{11,487);
$ (2877848)  §: (1976747)
$ 21888 § 10810

20,347 11,489
85,181 e

1,392,075 304,073

(RER TR U PR IE
ou,ooe —_i(53888)
3 1,438662‘ i§_ 823285

et
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NOTE 1

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31 _2019 AND. 2018:

}

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING BOLICIES:

Qeneral
Southwastern Communlty Services, Inc. {the Organization) ls 8 New Hampshire

nonprofil corporation formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an aray of
services to (he elderly, disabled, and low-income households in the Cheshire and
Sullivan counties of New Hampshire. Varous programs provide assistance in the
areas of education, child development, employment, energy and |ls conservatlon,
housing, ‘and homelessness prevention. Services are provided through
Southwestem Community Services, Inc., and its related corporations, SCS
Management Comoration, SCS Houslng, Inc., SCS Development Corporation,
SCS Housing Developmenl inc., end varous lumlled partnerships, as describéd
below. Ths Omanization is committed to providing respactful support service and
asslsting individuals end families In achieving self-sufficlency by helping them
overcoma the causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derved from
governmantal contracts.

s

1ernelplas: Sf.Cofigoliddtian ‘

The consolidated financld] stalements Include lhe accounts of Southwestem
Community Services, Inc. and the following entitles as Southwestem Gommuntty
Services, Inc. has both an economic Interest and control of the entities through a
majority voting Interest In thelr governing board. All significant Intercompany
ltems and transactions hava been eliminated from the baslc consolidated

financial statemenm

SCS Management Corporation
SCS Housing, Inc.
SCS Devalopment Corporation.
s SCS Housing Davelopment, Inc.
Drewsville Cerrlage House Assoclates, Limited Parinership (Drewsville)
Jafirey Housing Assoclates, Limited Parnership {Jaffrey) - Sold 2/1/19
Troy Senlor Housing Assoclates, Limiled Partnership {Troy Senlor)
Keene Easl Side Senior Housing Associatas, Limited Partnership, (Keene
Esgst Side)

» .Winchesler Senlor Housing Assoclales, Limited Parinership (W:nchestar)
- Consolldation began 8/16/17

‘« Swanzey Township Houslng Assoclates, lelted Partinership (Swanzey)

Consolldation began 6/30/18

4 Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Assoclates, Limited Partnership

(Snow Brook) Consolidation began 5/01/18

ey a8



‘Basls:of Accounil

The consolidated financial statements of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
and related . companles have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with generslly accepled accounting principles.

Basls of Presentation
The financis! statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance

with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require
the QOrganization to report Informallon regarding .its financlal position and
activiies according to the following net assel classifications. The classeas of net
assots are delermmined by the presence or absence of donor-lmposed
restrlchons

Net assets .without. donor restriclions: Net assets thal are not subject to
donor-imposed- restrictions’ and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objeciives of the Organization. These net assels
may be used at the discration of the Organization's Board of. Dlnedors

. striclions: Nat assets subject to stlpulauons
lmposed by donors and grantars. Some donor restrictions are temparary In
nature; those restrictions will be mel by actions of the Omanization or by
passage of ime. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor hes stipulated the funds be maintalned in perpetulty.

As of May 31, 2010 end 2818, the Orpanization had net assets without: donor
restrictions and wnh donor rastrictions.

The financlal statements include certain prior-year summarzed comparative
information In fotal but not by net asset class.. Such Information does not include
sufficlent detall to constitute a presentation in conformitly with generally accepted
accounting principles. - Accordingly, such Information “should be read In
conjunction wilh the Organization's financial statarments for the year ended May
31, 2018 from which the summarzed Information was derived.

Refunddble Advances

The Organlzation records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it 1s expended for the purpose ol the grent or contract, at which time it is
recognized as revenue. '

7'I'he Organlzatnon records varlous types of In-kind support Including professional

services end materlals. Contributed professional services' are recognized if the
service received creates or enhances long-ived assels or requires specialized
skill, are provided by individuals possassing those skills, and would typlcally need
to be purchased if not provided by donatlon. Contributions of tanglble. assets are
recognized at fair value when recelved.

10
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A:Esllmales
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted

accountling principles requires management 10 make estimates and assumptlons
that affect the reported amounts of assels and llabllittes and dlsclosure of
contingent assets and llabllities at the date of the financial stalements and the
raportad amounts of revenuas and expenses during the reporting perod. Actual
results could difer from those estimates.

‘Cash:andCash Equivalerits
‘For purposes of the statement of cash Mows, the Organizalion conslders all liquid
investments purchasad with orginal maturities of three months or less to be cash

equivalents,

ccounts Recolvable _
Accounts recelvable are slated al the amount managemsnt expacls to collect
from balancas outstanding at year end. Balances thal are still autstanding aftar
managemenl has used reasonsable collactlon efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation sllowance and & cradit to accounts recelvablg. The
allawance for uncollectible accounts was astimated to be zero at May 31, 2019
and 2018. The Organization has no policy for chargln. intarest on overdue

accounts.

Notes Receivable
The Organizatlon has two notes recetvable from an unretaled third party. The

notes recelvables are stated at the amount hat Is expected to be collected at
yoar end. Intgrest Is accryed at 8 rate of 4% annually. The balance of the
nolas raceivable dand related Interest recelvable was $112 000 and $45,547,
respectively, at May 31, 2019 and 2018.

The Organlzalion i5. operated In & heavily regulated environment. The
operations of the Organlzation aré subjact to the administrative directives, rules
and regulations of federal, stste and local regulatory egencles. ‘Such
administrative directives, rules and regulations are subjgct to change by an act
of Congress or Legislalure. Such changes may occur with little notice or

Inadequate funding to pay for the related "cost, including the additional,

.administrative burden, to comply with a change. For the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, approximately 68% and 75%, respectively, of the
Organizatlon's total revenue was recelved from govemment agencies. The
future nature of the organization Is depandent upon contlnued support from the

governmeni.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Organization malntains its cash accounts In several financlal institutions,

which at limes may exceed federally Insured limits. The Organization has not
experianced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

11
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Property and Depreclation

Purchased property and equipment are staled el cos! at the date of acquisition
or et falr value al the date of receipt in the case of donated property. The
Organization generally capltallzes and depreciates all assets wilh a cost greater
than $5.000 and an expected life grealer than one year. Depreclation is
provided for using the stralght-llne method In amounts designed to amortize the
cost of the assels over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 - 40 Years
Vehicles and squipmant 5-.10 Years

Furniture and fixiuras : : 7 Years

The use of cerlaln assets Is spacified under the terms of grants recelved from
agencies of the fedaral government. These granis also place liens on cartaln
assels and Impose restriclions on the use of funds recelved from the disposttion
of the property. Depreciation expense for the years anded May 31, 2019 and 2018
totaled $580,115 and $467,029, raspectivaly.

Advortising

The Organlzation expensges advertising costs as incurred.

Amaunts tecelved from- conditional - ‘grants .and: contracts :received for speciﬂc
PUrpases;are; ganerally recognized a§ Incomeito ihe:extent thatirefated: axpenses

and: condilions:are JIncumed: jor. ‘met.. Conditional :grants; recelved’ 50r o the,
condlllons being:metiare: reponedms:refundab!e ‘advarices: Contribud ong ol caéh
and other agseis are repartad as with donor reslrictions if they are recelved with
donor imposed stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, However, If g
restrictioh ts fulfilled In the same period in which the contribution Is racelvad the
Organization réports the support as without donor restrctions.

Income Taxes
Southwastern’ Communlty Services, inc. end SCS Menagament Cotporatlon

" are exemp! from Federal income iaxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Reavenue Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
income tax on their exempt funclion income. :

SCS Housling, !nc. 8CSs Development Comporation and SCS Housing
.Development, inc. gre laxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net
operating loss camyforwards totaling $1,012,804 and $915,425 at May 31, 2019
and 2018, raspectively. Thesse loss camyforwards may be offsat agalinst future
taxable Income end, If nol used, will begin to explre in 2027. SCS Deavelopment
Corporation has fedsral nst operating loss carryforwards totaling $579 and $607 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Thesa loss camyforwards may be offsst
agalnst future taxsble income and, If not usad, will begln to explra in 2022,

12



The tax effects of the camryforwards as related to deferred tax assets Is as
follows as of May 31, 2018 and 2018:

2019 2018
Tex benefit from loss carryforwards’ $212,768  $137,408
Valuation allowance {212,768)  (137,408)
.Defered tax asset = - $ -

Orewsville, Jaffrey, Troy Senlor, Winchester, Keene East Side. Swanzey, and
Snow Brook are taxed ss parinershipa. Faderal incoma taxes are not payable by,
or provided for these enliles. Eamings end losses are Included in the partners’
faderal Incomae tax- retums based on iheir share of parinership eamings.
Partnerships are requirad to flle Income tax retums with the State of New
Hampshire and pay an Incomne tax at the state’s statutory rate. )

Accounting Stendard Codification No. 740, “Accounting for Income Taxes,”
established the ‘minimum threshold for recognlzing, and a system for
measuring, the beneflls of tax retum positions in financlal statements.
Management has analyzed the Organization's tax position'taken on Its income
tax retums for all open years (tax years ending May 31, 2017 — 2019), and has
concluded thal no additlonal provision for Income 1exes Is necessary in the
Organization’s financial slatements, ' .

FairValue.of Elﬁagc{ai instruments
FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financlal Instruments, provides a definition of falr

. value which focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a

framework In generally accepled accounting principies fér measuring fair value
which emphasizes that falr value is a market-based measurement, not an

ehtlity-specific measurement, and requlires expanded disclosures about falr '

valué ‘massurements. In accordance with ASC 820-10, the Organization may
use valuation techniques consistent with merkel, income and cost approaches
to measure fali velue. As & basls for considering market participant
assumptions In falr value measurements, Toplc 820-10 establishes a falr value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the Inputs used in.msasufing fair values. The
hlerarchy glves the highest priority to Level 1 measurements and tha lowest

priority to Level 3 measurements. The three levels of the falr value hisrarchy

under ASC Topic 820-10 are described as follows:

Leve! 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices avallable In
active markets for Identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - inputs to the valuallon methodology are other than quoted market
prices In active markets, which are either directly or indlreclly obsarvable-as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

13
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NOTE 2

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methadology are unobservable inputs In
sttuations where there is littte or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting enlity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liablifly Including assumplions regarding risk.

The carrylng amount of cash, accounts recelvables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates falr value
because of the short maturity of those tnstrumeants.

‘New:Accounting Pronouncement
‘On"August 18,2016, FASB Issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profil Entities (Topic

§58) Prosentation of Financlel Stetements of Nol-for-Profit Enlitles. The update

addresses the complexily and understandablllty of nef asset classification,

deficiencies In information about liquidity and availabllity of resources, and the
lack of consistency in the type of Information provided ebout expenses and

: investment retum. The Organization has adjusied the prasentalion of these

statements accordingly. Tha ASU has been applied retrospeclively to ali periods
presenited. :

Einetional.Alioeation sfiExpenses:

The costs of providing thé varlous programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basls. Natural expenses are defined by thelr nature,
such es salariss, rent, supplies, elc. Funclional expenses are classified by the
type of ectivity for which expenses are incured, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are aliocated by function using a
reasonable and conslstent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certaln program and supporting services have been
direclly charged. : .

The ‘Omanization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the pald leave, fringe
benefits and other indlrect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
sarvicas. The indirect cost rate 15 11.98% effective from June 1, 2017 through
May 31, 2020.

‘BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $250,000 revolving.line of credit agresment with a bank.
Interes! Is due monthly and Is stated at the Wall Street Journa! Prime Rate. The
line is secured by all the Organlzation's assets. As of May 31, 2018 and. 2018,
the Interest rate was 5.50% and 4.75%, respectively. There was no outstanding
balance at May 31, 201€¢ and 2018.

14



NOTE 3

LONG TERM DEBY

The long term debt at May 31, 2019 and 2018 consisted of the following:

1% mortgage payable lo New Hampshire Housing

in monthly instaliments for princlpal and interest of
$801 through August 2032, The note Is secured
by real estale of ths Organization {NHHFA, 86
Maln Street).

Non-interest bear'ing morigage payable to

- Communily Daevalopment. Finance Authority, in

quartedy princlpal paymenls based on ‘operaling
incoma formula &applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
sacured by raal astate of the Organization (COFA,
g6 Maln Street). -

55% note payable to & bank In rnonthly
Instaliments for prncipal and interest of $978
through March 2021. The note Is secured by real
estate of the Orgsnization (People's United Bank,
Ashuslot).

Non-nlerest beardng morigage payable to” New
Hampshire Housing. Payment Is deferred for 30
years, through September 2031, or until project is
sold or refinanced. Tha note Is securad by real

. eslate of the Organization (NHHFA, 17 Pear).

Nom-interest bearng rortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment Is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there Is surplus
cash from which to make & peyment, or untit

. project Is sold or refinanced. The note Is secured

by real estale of the Organlzation (NHHFA 4143
Central}.

4.25% mortgage payable lo a bank In monthly
installments (or principal and Interest of $1,875
through December 2018, with a belloon payment
that was due January 2017. Thé note was
amended during the yesr ended May 31, 2019 and
iIs now due December 2026. Under the
amendment, Interest rate {s 4.94% and monthly
Instaliments for -principal and interest are $1,957
The note is secured by real estale of the
Qrgsnization (People’s United Bank, Mileslones).
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4.375% nole payable to Rural Hoﬁslng Service in
monthly instaliments for princlpal end Interest of

$11,050 through May 2049. The note is secured ,

by real estate of the Organization (TD Bank,
Keene Office).

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Paymeni is no!
necessary unless Organizalion defaults on
contract. The nole is secured by real estate of tha
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office).

4% note payable to a development company, in
annual Interest Instaliments only through March
2015 at which time a final balloon payment of the
entire principal balance was due. The remalning
balance is still outstanding ot May 31, 2018 and Is
classified as current. Tha note is secursd by real
astale of the Organlzation (MEDC, Keene
Office/Communlty Way).

4% note payable to a developmeni company, in
annugl intarast Instaliments only through March
2015 al which time a finai balloon payment of the
entirs principa! balance wes due. The remalning

balance is still outstanding at May 31; 20108.and Is
classified as cument. The note Is secured by real’

estate of the Organlzation (MEDC, Keene
Office/Community Way). '

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
princlpal and Interest of $2,463 including Interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
“Clgssic Advantaga Rate” provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boslon which resulted In an
Interes! rate of 4.687% and 4.07% at May 31, 2018
and 2018, respectively. The note is secured by
roa estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keens
Office/Community Way).

5.19% nole payable to & bank in monthly

instaliments for principal and interest of $889 -

through May 2021. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (TD Bank, 45 Central
Streat). :
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Non-Inlerest bearing note payable to the United
Siates Department of Houslng and Urban
Development. No paymant Is dua and beginning In
January 2015 10% of tha note is forgiven each
year praviding thé property Is usead for low income
housing through January 2025. The note Is
secured by resl estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuslot).

Non-interesl bearing note payabts to the Unlted
States Depariment of Houslng and Urban
Developmant. No payment is due end beginning in
January 2015 10% of the noté is forgiven each
year providing the property 16.used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note s
secured by real estate of the Omganization (HUD,
112 Charestown Road).

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing In annuai payments in the
amount of 50% of -annual sumplus cash through
July 2042 at which time the remalning balance Is
dua. The note Is secured by real estate of the
Onganizalion (NHHFA, Second Chance).

Non-Interest bearing note payable to a county In
New Hampshire. No payment Is due and 5% of
the balance Is forglven each year through 2032
when the remalning balance becomes due. The
note Is secured by real estate of the Organization
(COBG, Second Chance).

8.99% note payable io a finence company In
monthly Installments for principal and Intaerest of
$652 through June 2018. The note |3 securad by a
vehicle (TCF, Econcline Van).

5.54% note: péyeble to a flidnce compaily in

. menthly instalimenis: for pdncipar and interest of

$543 through August 2022. The note Is securad by
a vahicle (Ally, Econoline Van).
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Jaffrey - 30-year deferred nole payable to the
Town of Jaffray, New Hampshire. Payment of
principal and accrued interest at 1% were defemred
until the note malures in June 2027. The note was
securad by land and bulldings.. The balance
included cumulative accrued Interest of $53,651
(CDBG). Jaffrey was sold during the year ended
May 31, 2018 and the balance was forgiven.

Jaffrey - 6% note payable to a bank in monthly
Instafimenis for principa! and Interest of $485
. through August 2027. The nole was secured by
tand and bulldings (TD Bank). Jafirey was sold
during the year ended May 31, 2019 and this note
was pald in full.

Troy Senior - Non-Interasl bearing note payable to
a counly in New Hampshire, Payments are
deferred untli the note matures In June 2029, The
note I$ secured by real aestate of the Organizalion
(CDBG).

Troy Senlor - Non-interest bearing note payable to_

New Hampshire Housing Finance Authoriiy to fund
energy efficlency improvements through the

© Authority's: Greener Homes Program. Payment Is -

deferred for 30 years, through August 2042, The
nole s secured by real estate of the Omanization
{NHHFA).

Keene East Slde - Non-Interest bearing note
payable 1o 8 county In New Hampshire. Paymants
are daferred-untll the note matures In Decamber
2028. The note Is secured by reel estale of the
" Organlzation (CDBG).

Keane East Side - Non-interesi besring note
payable (o New Hampshire Community
Development Flnance Authorty (COFA) to fund
energy upgrades and -cepital Improvements.
Beglnning in 2016, 10% of the note s forglven
each year based on the rolling balance. The
morigage may be released after ten years In
January 2026. The note'ls secured by real estate
of the Organlzation (COFA).
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Keena East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshlre Housing to fund
energy efficloncy [mprovemenis through the
Authority’s Greener Homes Program. Payment is
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real eslate of tha Organization
(NHHFA).

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple interest
morigage note payable to the New Hampshire:
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033, principal
and Interest payable at the sole discretion of the
-{ender from the excess cash ol the bormower
detemmined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and bulkdings, subject to low
income housing use restricions for the 30 year
. termof the mortigage.

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable
to New Hampshire Housing {AHF), due
September 2043, payable in monthly instaliments
of $1,698, including interest at 2.35% secured by
the Partnership's land and bulldings, subject to low
Income housing use resldctions for the 40 year
term of the mortgaps.

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, morigage nole
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, paysbla In monthly Installments of $2,002
Including Interest al 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and bulldings, subject to low
Income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
. termn of the mortgege.

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero Interest
morigage nole payable to New  Hampshire
‘Housing (AHF), due June 2034, principal &nd
Interest payabis al the sole discretion of the lender
from the excess cash of the borrower determined
by formula, secured by the Parinarship’s land and
buildings, subject to low Income haousing use
restrctions for the 30 year term.of the mortgags.
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winchesler - Non-recourse morigage nole payable
to New Hampshlre Housing (AHF), due May 2032,
payable in monthly instaliments of $370, including
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Parnership’s
land and buildings, subject lo low incoms housing
use restrdctions for the 30 year term of the
mortgage note (NHHFA).

winchestar - Non-racourse, zero Intarest bearing
mortgage note payable lo New Hampshire
Housing (FAF), due May 2032, payable gt the sole
discretion of the lender from the excess cash of
the borrower determined by formula, secured by
the Partnership's 1end and bulldings, subject 1o low
income housing Use restictions far the 30-year
term of the morngage note (NHHFA).

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero Inlerest bearing,
direct subsidy AHP loan secured by the
Partnership's land and bulldings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP sgreement. In the event of a defaull under
tha aforementioned agreement, the loan is due
upon demand with interest accrued at a rate of

11.67% for the period the funds ware oulsianding

(Federal Home Loan Bank).

Totat long-term debt before unamortized defermed
financing costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

- Less cuent portlon due within one year

2019 2018
50,436 53826
92,058 82,058
.- 150.000 . 150,000
0,332,609  8.490.421
. ‘IB,E&3I L = .‘-.'
9,313,866 8,490,421
227,221 216,438

The schedule of maturities of long term debl at May 31, 2018 (s as follows:

Year Ending

May 31
2020
2021

2022
2023
2024

Tharealter

Total
20

Amount
$ 227,221
121,051
115,864
115,596
118,605
_8.634,272

$£8:332,609.
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NOTE 4

NOTE 5

NOTE 6

OPERATING LEASES.
The Organization ‘ledses facllities, equipment and vehicles under non-

‘cancelable lsase sgreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods

range from month to month lo 2024. Monthly lease payments range from $60 to
$3,625. Lease expensa for the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018 totaled
$144,880 and $136,963 respectively. )

Future minimum payments as of May 31,2018 on the above leases are as
foliows:

Year Ending
May 31 Amount
2020 $ 78,745
2021 21,677
2022 , 16,318
2023 _ 1,050
2024 720
Thereafter __ 120
Total §_120.630

ACCRUED COMPENSATED.BALANCES .

‘At May 31, 2010 and 2018, the Organization accrued a liabfiity for future annual

leave time tha! its employees had eamed and vested In the amount of $131,864
and $130,140, respectivaly.

CONTINGENCIES .

‘Southwastem Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SCS Housing, |

Inc. and SCS Houstng Development, Inc. SCS Houslng, nc. and SCS Houslng
Development, Inc. are the general partners of ten-mited partnerships formed to
develop low-iIncome housing projects through the use of Low Incoma Housling
Tax Credis. Southwastern Communlty Services, Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of llabliities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $14,151,000 and $15,653,000 at
May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. ‘

Partnership real estale with a cost basis of approximately $35,831,000 and
$41,158,000 at May 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, provides collateral on
these loans. '
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NOTE 7

NOTE 8

The Organization recelves funds under varlous slate grants and from Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization s required to
use the funds within a certaln period and for purposes specified by the
governing laws and regulslions. If costs were found not to have been Incurred
In compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organlzalion might be required
to repay the funds. .

No provistons have been made for this contingency because spaclfic amounts,
If any, have not been determined or assessed by govemmaent audits as of May
31, 2019 and 2018. 2

RELATED:PARTY TRANSACTIONS, -

During :the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, SCS Houslng, Inc. managed
ten limited parinerships. Management fees charged by SCS Housing, Inc. totaled
$313,466 and .$322,973, for the years ended May 31, 2018 and 2018,
respectively.  Additionafly, SCS Housing, inc. hes advanced the limiled
partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has alsc advanced funds to a relatad entlty_fé'r Department of
Houslng and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expacted to be collected from the {imited partnerships
and related entities totaled $59,102 end $188,523, respectlve!y. at May 31, 2019
and 2018

_.Eqwr.-mgmzssms‘nir”

Southwestern Community Services, inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account for thelr financlal Interests in the following companles:

2019 - 2098

Cityside HousIng Assoclates, LP $ (9.500) $ (0,492)
Martborough Homes, LP : (11) 8
Payson Viliage Senlor Housing Associates, LP (12,603) (12,401)
Rellroad Square Senlor Housling Associates, LP . (1,887) (1.7185)
Warwick Meadows HousIng Assoclates, LP (21) (1"
Woodcrest Driive Housing Assoclates, LP 222,842 222,846
Waostmlll Santor Housing, LP 78 20
Swanzey Township Housing Assodates, LP - (31.190)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Houslng

Aesoclates, LP - {60,716)
Keene Highland Housing Assoclates, LP (260)  (243)
Pilot Health, LLC i - (18,374)



[

SCS Housing Developmént, Inc. is a 0.01% parner of Cltyside Housing
Assoclates, LP, Marborough Homes, LF, Payson Village Senior Housing
Assoclates, LP, Wamwick Meadows Houslng Associates, LP, and Woodcrest
Drive Housing Assoclales, LP, a 0.10% parner of Railroad Square Senlor
Housing Associates, LP, and a 1% partner In Westmill Senlor Housing, LP
during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

SCS Housing, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing
Assoclates, LP, Swanzey Township Housing Assoclates, LP, Snow Brook
Meadow Villege Housing Assoclales, LP, end Keene Highland Housing
Assoclales, LP during the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018.

The remalning 99.69% awnership Interast In Swanzey Townshlp Housing
Assoclates, LP and Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Assoclates, LP ware
acquired by Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending
May 31, 2018 (ses Note 12), and therefore the limited partnership Is included In
the consolldated financlgl statements for the year ended May 31, 2018. The
remaining 99.98% ownership interest in Winchester Sentor Housing Assoclates,
LP was acqulrad by Southwestern Community Service, Inc. during the year
ended May 31, 2018 (see Nole 12), and therefore the Iimited partnership Is
included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended May 31,
2019 and 2018. A

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. was a 14.3% member of Pliot Health,
LLC during the year ended May 31, 2018. Pilol Health was terminated during
the yaar ended May 31, 2018.

Summarized financial Informatlon for entities accounted for under the equlty
method, as of May 31, 2018 and 2018 conslsts of the followlng:

*

2019 2018
Total assels $ 0,748 L 32782
Total llabliitles 3 454 47,461
Capltal{Member‘s aqulty _....3.2681 _(14.619)
Income $ 426 $ 84713
Expenses . 661 .:'BJ:- 18

Net Income (loss) £__(235) p N

23

-



NOTE B

NOTE 10

NOTE 11

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Orgenlzstion malntains a'tax sheltered annuity plan undar the provisions of
Saction 403(b}) of the Intemal Revenue Code. All employees who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organlzation are eligible to contribute 1o the plan.
The Organlzation beglns matching contributions after the employee has
reached one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organlzation's
discretion and totaled $296,009 and $289 069 for the years ended May 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively.

RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS.

Nel asgels with donor resirictions are avallable for the following purposes:

2019 2018
NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund $ 5873 § 21,327
Stand Down - 4963
GAPS/Warm Fund 91,808 118,401
. Transport ' 47,260 -
HS Parents Assoclation 6,575 . -
EHS e 31,200 T

" Total nel assets with donor restrictions &__J_ﬂz,a]ﬁ ‘s 144, 601!

FEORGIVENESS OF DEBT. .
'Dunng the year ended May 31, 2018, the Organization reallzed forglvanass of
. debt Income in connection w:th notes payable to Community Development

Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance Authority.
Forgiveness of dabl income totaled $388,849 for the year ended May 31, 2018.

During the year anded May 31, 2018, the Organlzation reallzed forgiveness of
debt income In canneclion with notes payable to the County of Chashire, HUD
and New Hampshire Housing. Forgiveness of debt income totaled 375,871 for
the yoar ended May 31, 2018.

24

————— . . -



NOTE 12

TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTEREST,

During the years ended May 31, 2019 and 2018, Southwestem COmmunlty
Services, In¢c. acquired a parinership Interest in three low-income housing limited
pantnerships: Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook. The amount pald for the
partnership interest in Winchester, Swanzey and Snow Brook was $1 each, and
at the time of acqulsition, Southwestemm Community Services, Inc. became the
general partner. The following is a summary of the assets and liabllities of the
parinership at the date of acquisition:

2018 2019
Winchester ~ Swanzey Shiow Brook:
Date of Transfer ' 08/16/2017  06/30/2018  05/01/2019
Cash . ) $ 24,508 $ 12,858 $13,374
Security deposits 11,467 7,330 8,821
Cagh.reserves 164,110 + 119,081 178,852
Property, net £90,842 1,330,231 1,241,344
Other essets . 12328 __. 6,436 - - _-IQ.I-Z.Q, )
Total assets 1203255 1475814 1428164
Notes payable 304,073 666,902 . 885,173
Other Llabllities 222,009 .. 87,108, 140,110
A
Tolel liablities . - _326082: ._754010  ,.805:202.
Pariners’ capltal YA < 721,804 822,872

Partners’ capltal previously recorded

as an invesiment in related partios . (53.888) 31,180 80,718

Partners’ capital fransferred $623285  $251.004. $603:588.
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NOTE 13 AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY
-, The followtng represents Southwestern Communily Services' financial assels as
of'‘May 31, 2019 and 2018:

. 2018 2018
Financlal assats at year and:
Cash and cash equivalants $ 882,187 $ 1,086,895
Accounts recelvable 1,245,826 1,095,488
Dug from related party 59,102 © 188,523
Notes racelvable 112,000 112,000
Interest recelvable 45,547 45,547
Cash escrow and reserve funds . -840:334 517,853
Total financial assets _ ' 3193806  __ 3,046,304
Less amounts not available to be used
within ona year.
Due from related pary ) {59,102) (188,523)
Notes recalvable - (112,000) (112,000)
Interest recelivable {45.547) (45,547)
Ressrve funds ‘ {729,486} 1%,989)

Total amounts not available within one yaar (8468135} {781,050

Financal assets avallable 1o reet gensral
_ expandtturas over the next twelve months

. The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately

. $1,224000 and $1,183,000 at May 31, 2018 and 2018, respectively. The
Organization has & $250,000 line of cred|t avallable to mest cash flow needs.

NOTE 14 RECLASSIFICATION
Certain arounts and- accounts from the prior year's ﬁnanclal statements were .
reclassified to enhance comparabliity with the curent year's financlal statements.

NOTE15 SUBSEQUENTEVENTS.

"SUbseguent evenis are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financla! position date, but before financial statements are avallable to be issued.
" Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide addilional
evidence about condltions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
Including the estimates Inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
condltions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through
November 5, 2018, the date the financial statlements were available to be issued.
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NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

NOTE 4

NOTES

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
.FOR THE YEAR ENDEB MAY-31, 2019

BASIS OF:PRESENTATION
The accompenylig schedule of axpendlitures of Faderal Awards (the Schadulae)
Includes the federal award activity of Southweslem Cormmuntly Services, Inc.
under programs of the federal govemment for the year ended May 31, 2018, The
Information In this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Tile 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unlform Administrative:
Requilrements, Coast Principles, and Audit Requiremments for Fedaral Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only 8 selacted portion of
the operations of Southwestem Communlty Services, Inc., It is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization, :

s

:SUMMARY: OF SIGNIFICANT-ACCOUNTING POLICIES
[Expendltirss’ eported on tha Schedule aré repofted on the accrual basls of
accounting. Such expenditures ars recognized following "the cost principles
contained in the Unlform Guldance, wherein certaln types of expendltures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursemant,

IND|RECT COST RATE.

Southwestem Community Services, Inc. has elected not to use the ten percant
de minimis Indirect cost rate allowed under the Unlform Guidance. - )

EOOD.DONATION.
Nonmonstary” dsslstance Is reporied In the Schedule at the falr value of the
commodlties recelved and disbursed.

SUBRECIPIENTS.

. Southwaslem Communlty Services, Inc. had no subrec[plenls for the ysar ended

May 31, 2010,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON.INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

H GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS.

IN ACCORDANCE WIT

To the Board of Directors of
Southwastern Community Services, Inc.
Keenea, New Hampshim

We have audiled, in accordance with the audiling standards generally accepled In the United
Slates of America and the slandards applicable to financial audits contained in Government’
Auditing Standards tssued by the Comptrolier General of the United States, the consclidated
financlal statements of Southweastem Communily Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
carporation) and related companies, which comprise the consolidaled statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2019, and the ralated consolidated statements of activilies, cash flows,
and functional expenses for the year lhen ended, and the related consolldated notes to the
financlal statements, and have issued our repori thereon dated November 5, 2018,

Aniternal-Cantro) Over Flnanclal Repdtting. _
In planning and performing our audit of the consolldated financial slatements, we considered
Southwesteri Community Services, Inc.’s intemal control over financial raporling (internal
_control) to determine the audit procedures that are éppropriate’in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our oplnion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc’s intermal control. Accordingly, we do nol express an opinion on the effactiveness of
Southwastern Community Sesvices, Inc.'s intemat control.

A deficiancy in inlernal conlrol exists when the design or operatian of a control does nol allow
management or employees. In the normal course of pedorming their assigned functions, to
preven!, or delect and correcl, misstalements on 3 limely basis. A material weakness [s a

deficiency, or combination of deficiencles, in inlarnal control, such thal there is a reasonable -

possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not
be prevenled, or detected and corrected. on a timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a
deficiency, of 8 combination of deficiencies, in inlernal conlrot thal is less severe than .8
material weakness, yel important endugh to.ment attention by those charged with govemance.

N
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Qur consideration of tha internal control was for the limlled purpose described in the first
paragraph of this seclion and was not desligned lo identiy all deficlenclas In Intemal controf
that might be meteral weaknesses or significant defictencles. Glven these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we cansider to be materal
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may extst that have not been identified.

_. ;and:Other Maiters:

As part of obtalning réasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financlal stalaments ars fres of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreéments,
noncompliance .with which could have a direct and material effect on the determinatlon of
consolidated financial statement amounts, However, providing an oplnion on compllance with

-those provislons was nol an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do nol express such an

opinion. The resulls of our tests disclosed no Instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

,E ose offthls Regod

The: purpose ‘of.thig report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the resuits of that testing, snd not to provide an opinion on the effectivenass of
the Organization's intemal control or on'compllance. This report Is an Integral part of an audHt
performed. in accordance with Govemment Audlting Standards In’ oonsldedng the

.Organization's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable

for any other purpose.

z.m/_ /ﬂrﬂmelf / /@éz

b

Novamber §, 2018
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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~ INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON {NTERNAL CONTROL
'OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED:BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE.

To the Board of Direclors of

Southwestem Community Services, Inc.

Keense, New Hampshire

ance.forEach Malor Fedorad! Preqram -

Wa. heve audlled .Southweslem Communlty :Services, Inc. (a New Hampshire . fohgrofit
corporation) and refaled companies’ compllance «With .the types of compllance requilréments
described in the OM8 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Southwestém Comimunily Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year eéhded May
31, 2010. Southwestein Corfiffunily Sarvices, Inc.'s major federsl programs are (dentifigd I the
summary of audliors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of findlngs and quesiioned
costs. - : .

Aanagement’s Responslbillt .
anagement Is: raspons bie for compliance with the; federal statutes, regulations, end the terms
and condllions of Ils federal-awards applicable to ils federal programs,

‘Out: FespanEidiliy 15 10 express an opinion on compliance for gach of Soulhiwestern Cormunity
Services, Inc.'s major federal programs based on our aUdil of the typés. of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with
‘audlting standards generally accepted in the United States of Amaerice; the slandards applicable to
financlal audits contained in- Government Auditiig Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and Tile 2 U.S. Code of Federal Ragulalions Part 200, Unilorm

Administrative Requirements, Cost "Principles, end Audit Requirements for Federsl Awards’

(Uniform Guldance). Those stendards and the Unitorm Guidance require that we plan and perform
the -audit '{o; oblain reasonable essurance about wwhiether ;noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a dlrect-and materia! effect on a major
fedoral program occurred. An audit Includes examining, on 8 lesl basis, evidence about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.’s compliance with those requirements and perfarming
such other procedures as we considered necessary. in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basls for our opinion on compliance for each
majoi léderal piogram. However, our audit does not provide a legal detsrminalion of
Southweslern Communily Sghvices, Inc.’s compliance.

3
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‘OblAleWon E4ER MulsFFedsral Program: :
| rian uthwestém. G ty:Services, inc. complied, in all material respacis, with the
compliance requiremants referred to above that could have & diract and material effact on each of
its major faderal programs {or the year anded May 31, 2018.

Py 1

‘Rapod:on Jrternai:Control:Ovar Coj

figne

malritaining effectlve intemal control over compllance with the types:of compllance requirements
referred to 'ebove: In_ planning and performing our audit of complishce, we  considerad
Southweslern ‘Community: Seivices;, Inc.'s (ﬁljér.'ljﬁll WGontioF ',Ej\?',e‘ﬁ:gdﬁij![a:ﬁ'@:,hﬁl;h. tha. tpés. of
requirefments. that; could “have a.difect-end materal’ éffect .on'.dach ‘major féderal. program to
deterinine {hevaudiling, procedurds that :dra appropriatd In (e clicumistances; (6t thexpunpase: of
expréssing ‘an-OpinkA on Bompliante for‘éach major fedaral frogram and 19: (St ahd” feport on
iniemal Soritrol ovék.cathpliance Tn‘accopdance withhi Urilforfh GUIdangs. bit hot (orthieioyriose
of €xpressing ‘dn GpIAIgH on the effectivediess of liligmal.cortrol:over compliance; Acafdingly. we
do not express an opinlon on the effectiveness of Souttiwastém: Community ‘Services, ';th 's
inlernal control over compliance.

A d8EIEncy, In ItitsTd! corilfg! GVer- Eoffiptiance exists:when-the deslgn or operation of 8 control
over.compllance:does not allw managément or employees; In the normal:course.of performing

thali -assigned functions. to_ prevent; -or detact and corect, \noncompliance: with ‘ai type of .

compllance mquirement:of.a federaliprogram;on a:iimely:bas)s.. Amaterial-waakness.in iriternal
contrpt over compliance is a8 deficlency, or combination of deficiencles in Intemal control over,
compliance, such that there is a reasonable posslbliity thal matefidl:noncomgllanca=with'a:type of
compilance requirement of a federal pro?ram will.riot be:prevented; .or-detected and corréctad; on
a timaly basls. A significant deficlency In intemal control-overicdmpllance: is @ deficl8ncy:, or a
combination of deficiencles, In Intemal control: over' compilance ‘with a type of. ‘Gompildnce
requirement of a faderal program that s less sevarg-than:a:materal wéakness:In:Intemal:control
over.compliance, ya! important enough to merit attenllon by those charged with govemande.

- Our conslderation of Intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose describad in the

first paragraph of thle section and was not designed to Identify a!l deficlericles In Internel contro!
over cdmpllance that might be materlal weaknessas or significaril deficlencles;‘Wé did not Idantify
any deficlencles In Internal controt over compllsncs that we Corslder to be matenalweakinagses.

However, material weaknesses may exist that were no! ldentified.
The ppos: o (s regort o fhidmal tirdkigver cormpligoats, bolely e deScAE g Soopd of.
our tastlng: of Intatal ‘contfol Gver ‘complidnce dnd' tho: tésults ‘of ‘that: tasting -based on .the
requirenmants of ‘the Unifomn ‘Guldangs: Aceondingly: ‘this: repart :is ot ‘suliable for ‘any othar

purpose.
| Ly, 1 Lennoll § Roberts
Prfléstind ssoeiituph

November 5, 2018
Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS_ AND QUESTIONED COSTS
[FOR THE YEAR ENDED:MAY. 31,:2018.

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The audltors' report expresses &n unmodified oplnion oﬁ whetlher the consolidated financia!
stifgenta of Southwestem Communlly Senvces, Inc. were prepared In accordance with

2. No 'significant deficlencles disciosed durng the asudit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported in the Independen! Audlffors’ Report on Internal Control Over
Financlal Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on en-Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Audlling Standards. No materal

weaknesses are reporied.

3. No lnstances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financlal statements of
Southwestem Communfty Services, [Inc. which would bé required to be reported In

accordance with Goveinmént Audiling Standards were disclosed during the audit. -

4. No significant deﬂéle,ncies in Intemal control over, major federal awerd programs are
reported In the Indegentfent Auditors” Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on--Intemsl: Conirol ‘Qver Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material

weaknéssas are raportad.

5. The qdd!tors' repori on compliance for the major federal award progrems for. Southwesterm

Commurilty- Sefvices, Inc. expresses an unmiodified opinion on all major federal programs.

.6, Thefa were nc; audlt findings that are raqulired to be raported in accordance with 2 CFR

ssclion 2_00.516(8).

7. The.programs fsfed db. Fidjor progiars were: U.S. Dipaitmént of Health and Human
b8, Lowiincome Home Endrgy: Asslstance, 83568, :and U.S. Depadment of

Sarvice
Transportation; Formula Grants for Rural Areas, 20.509.

8. T'ho. threshold for distingulshing Type A and B programs was $750,000..
9. Southwestem Comniunlty Services, inc. was datermined to be a low-risk audites.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None

s
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Thera:were no findings or qUgstioned costs that WTe:fegulrad to be reported In the Schedule

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
[FOR THE YEAR ENDED:MAY: 31,2016

of Fifgligs'and Questioned:Casts for the year ended MAY.31, 2018.
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Southwestern Communify Services, Inc. Board of Directors - Compasition ~ 2020 —

COKSTITUENT

SECTOR:

CHESHTRE COUNTY.

Beth Fox

Aisistait Eiry Mariger/
Human Resources Director .
‘City of Keenc

Brignna Tiofibi-
Head Start Policy-Council
Parent Rieptésentative

SULLIVAN COUNTY

Mairy Lou Huffling
Fall Mbuniain Emerpency Faod Shielf
Alstead Friendly Meals

PRIVATE
| SEGTOR

Kevin: Wafterson, Chair/Secrétary
Glarke:Companies (retired)

.Anne Beattie
Newport Service, Organization

PUBLIC

Jay Kahn.
State Senator, District 1.0

David EdKins
Walpole, NH

Kerry Belkniip Morris; M:Ed.
Early ChildhoodiEducation
River Valley Communily Gollege

Derck Ferland
Sullivan County Manager
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Key Personne!
Neme. Job Title : Salary | % Baid'froin  |.-Afitodnt Paid from
this Conlrocis | this Controct
Johkn Manninp Executive Direclor, 15162867 0% 0
Terra-Rogers Difector-of Enérgy & $56,160 | 50% $28,080 -
: Employment. Proprams
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John A. Manhing

‘Over 30'years of'experience with non-profit organizalions, as both an
Joutside auditor and presently Chiof Executive Officer of 8 Large’
community action agency.

2014-Present Southwegtem Community Services Inc.
' ... Keéngé; NH

‘Chigt-Executive Officer

Has overallstralégic and operdlibnal-responsibiity for a Eommunhity:attion

. agency providing:services Lo iow ghd moderdte income Individuals,

Programs-include. Hedd-Stan, Fuel Assidtafice, and multiple aordable

housirig pidjecté: REspansiitss inéhudé ralntaining ongoing éxceliente, '

Afondus:piogran evalidtion shd.corsistént quakity of fifarics, .adrministration,

. tundialsing; communicitons dnd systerms: Works wihi s Board of Diectdrs

‘and fnenagement1asiritb inplement the'objéctives of SCS's siategic plan.
Aely efigagks and enenja s Vollnleers, board members, ent
:corfimittges; partnering ofganizations and iunders; Develops and malniains
$0ong rélabonships witli-lhe Board:of Directors and serve;3s ex-officio
rémber of thé, 8410, Leads, coaches; devilops shd retainsa high-
"pérformance mahagemerit i¢am, Efsiiés effective’systems ang:¢v place to
reasure:wai paiformance, provide. regutdr fetdback'to funding'sdlirces
and comriurilty partners, i ' :
1990-2014 Southwesiém Cammiunity Sefvices Int:
Keene, NH
Chief FinanclalOfficor
Oversees all fiscal functions -Supervises @ staff of 7, with an ‘agency
‘budgel of over ‘% 13000.000: Also oversees agency. property
managemeni depariment, which manages over.300. uniis of affordable
housing.

1085-1905 Koeno Sinte Collego Koono, NK
Adjunct Professor

Taugh! evering accouiling classes for their continuing education
program:

1978-1990 v John' A, Manning, Keene, NH -
Eertified Public Accountant ‘
Provided public eccounting services (o.small and medium sized clients:
including muttiple non-profil ogantzations. Performed certified -audits-on
severn! dients, including Head Start'and other non-profil dients -

Oy



Education

19751978 KosUn.and Co. CPA'S west Haitford, :CL

Staff Accountant
Performed ali-aspects of pubkic Bocouriting for medium sized accounting

firm, .Aldited targe. nuriiber of prvately held.and ngn-profit clieats.

10711975 University of Mass. Ammhiérst, Ma,
+ BS. Busiiéss Admifisyatonth Abosuriing

AmerZan Instituté of Cénified Public Accountants:

-NH Sociely of Certtified Pubkt: Acoduntants:

e



Terra Rogers

PROFESSIONAL PROFILE: Current Director of Energy and Employment Programs-with 10 years of
expérience in a non-profit setting.

MANAGEMENT AND SOCIAL SERVIGE'SKILLS

Personnel Relatlons ¢ Lead and Motivate. ¢ interviewing
Strong PCskills * Excellent Communication o Datghpse Management
‘Human Resources: ». Communily Qutreach e Tialning and Development
Problgi.Solving ¢ Decisioii Making * Maintain Confidentiality.
'
EXPERIENCE
Southwéstern Commiunity-Services [Keene/Clarémont, NH] ‘ 11/2006- Current

Director of Eniergy-and Employméit Progromss (11/2015- Cuirent)

Oversee all daity operations for Fuel Assistance, Electvit Assistance, Ne:ghbor Hélpmg Neightior,
Senigr Energy. Assistance and Assurance 16 as well as the wOrkforce lnnovatlon and
Oppartunities-Act Program (WIDAJ.

WIOA: Effiployment Counselor (11/2006-11/2015)

Provide career manggemerit sérvices to eligible cistamers-witha Tociis oy héiping (hém obtain
.employment.. Follows, stringent guidelines and extensive documentation ta hélg ‘ensure

program i running with federal and state government regulations. Serves2s a°.1iai_son_ between

chstomers,. instfuctors, school administrators :and - businesses. Strong understanding of

community resources'to help ptovide appropriate referrals-throughout the:community.

Staples [various logations throughout VT, ME, NY'ahd NH} 9[:1995-_-. 11/2006
Operotions Mangger -
Consistently promoted. over a. 10 year period. Establlshed and mdintained.all store operaﬂons

‘Provided. tugh end-custormieriservice which helped to-continuously éxcéed maximnum sales godls.
" Fulfiled a broad range of MR functions, including récruiting,. onbibarding, evaluations; staff

tealning, administering benefits, overséeing, distiplinary -actioh and managing stofe personiiel.

‘Mariaged staff payroll,store sehedulirig, corpany marketing dnd overall store.présentation.

}
EDUCATIQN
Gronite Staté. College- Concord, NH
Bacheloi of Sciénce.(BS) in Behavidral Science {Magnum Cum taude) Graduated Jurie 2012



